NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION INC Form 10-Q November 10, 2008 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-Q

		_	
(Mar	1-	Λ.	ر م
uviai	ĸ	v	IC I

x Quarterly report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008.

- or -

Transition report pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 for the transition period from ______ to _____.

Commission file number 000-24151

NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Washington (State or other jurisdiction of

91-1574174 (I.R.S. Employer

incorporation or organization)

identification No.)

421 West Riverside, Spokane, WA 99201-0403

(Address of principal executive offices)

(509) 456-8888

(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes x No "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer " Accelerated filer " Non-accelerated filer " Smaller reporting company x

(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes " No x

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

The Registrant has a single class of common stock, of which there were 2,367,246 shares issued and outstanding as of November 6, 2008.

NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION, INC.

FORM 10-Q

QUARTERLY REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION	3
Item 1. <u>Financial Statements</u>	3
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition	3
Consolidated Statements of Income	4
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity	5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flow	6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	7
Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	17
Forward-Looking Statements	17
Summary of Critical Accounting Policies	17
<u>Highlights</u>	18
Results of Operations	19
Net Interest Income	19
<u>Loan Loss Provision and Allowance</u>	25
Non-interest Income	30
Non-interest Expense	30
Balance Sheet	31
<u>Loans</u>	31
<u>Securities</u>	32
<u>Deposits</u>	33
Junior Subordinated Debentures	34
<u>Capital Resources</u>	34
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Commitments	36
<u>Liquidity</u>	37
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	40
Item 4. <u>Controls and Procedures</u>	40
Item 4T. Controls and Procedures	41
PART II OTHER INFORMATION	41
Item 1. <u>Legal Proceedings</u>	41
Item 1a. Risk Factors	42
Item 2. <u>Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds</u>	42
Item 3. <u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	42
Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders	42
Item 5. Other Information	42
Item 6. Exhibits	42
<u>SIGNATURES</u>	43

2

PART I FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements

NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

Unaudited

(Dollars in thousands)

	Se	ptember 30 2008	De	cember 31 2007
Assets				
Cash and due from banks	\$	6,357	\$	8,155
Federal funds sold/interest bearing balances at other financial institutions		997		4,116
Securities held-to-maturity (fair value, \$7,632 and \$7,693, respectively)		7,629		7,650
Securities available-for-sale (amortized cost, \$18,403 and \$28,714, respectively)		18,529		28,910
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost		924		646
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of \$3,488 in 2008 and \$2,711 in 2007		331,538		274,713
Loans held for sale		853		2,226
Accrued interest receivable		1,535		1,519
Foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets		299		6
Premises and equipment, net		15,236		10,134
Bank owned life insurance		3,659		3,560
Other assets		2,175		2,081
TOTAL ASSETS	\$	389,731	\$	343,716
Liabilities				
Noninterest bearing demand deposits	\$	54,540	\$	45,623
Money Market accounts		32,947		32,308
NOW accounts		13,311		14.533
Savings accounts		35,603		16,602
Time Certificates of Deposit, \$100,000 and over		71,653		67,020
Time Certificates of Deposit, under \$100,000		101,858		96,454
•		,		
TOTAL DEPOSITS		309,912		272,540
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase		15.424		26,760
Federal Funds Purchased		8,910		0
Borrowed funds		16,283		8,486
Capital lease liability		599		599
Junior subordinated debentures issued in connection with trust preferred securities		5,155		5,155
Other borrowings		2,941		0
Accrued interest payable		876		1,170
Other liabilities		1,518		1,660
		1,010		1,000
TOTAL OTHER LIABILITIES		51,706		43,830
TOTAL DEPOSITS & OTHER LIABILITIES		361,618		316,370

Shareholders Equity		
Common stock, no par, 5,000,000 shares authorized; issued and outstanding 2,367,246 on September 30, 2008		
and 2,361,746 on December 31, 2007	23,185	23,039
Retained earnings	4,845	4,178
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax effect of (\$43) for 2008 and (\$66) for 2007	83	129
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY	28,113	27,346
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY	\$ 389,731	\$ 343,716

NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Unaudited

(Dollars in thousands, except number of shares and per share information)

			months ended tember 30				, year-to-date, end otember 30	
	2	2008 2007				2008		2007
Interest Income								
Interest and fees on loans	\$	5,583	\$	4,928	\$	16,302	\$	13,965
Interest on securities		305		507		992		1,367
Interest on federal funds sold		13		88		103		409
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME		5,901		5,523		17,397		15,741
Interest Expense								
Interest on deposits		2,254		1,873		6,763		5,300
Interest on securities sold under agreement to repurchase		57		327		205		883
Interest on borrowed funds		303		141		754		432
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE		2,614		2,341		7,722		6,615
NET INTEREST INCOME		3,287		3,182		9,675		9,126
Provision for loan losses		625		90		1,000		270
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES		2,662		3,092		8,675		8,856
Noninterest Income								
Fees and service charges		344		220		898		656
Net gain from sale of loans		88		155		347		479
Other noninterest income		210		183		616		536
TOTAL NONINTEREST INCOME		642		558		1,861		1,671
Noninterest Expense								
Salaries and employee benefits		1,679		1,447		5,023		4,381
Occupancy, premises & equipment expense		278		249		845		752
Depreciation and amortization expense		220		137		569		416
Other operating expense		814		702		2,394		2,123
TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSE		2,991		2,535		8,831		7,672
INCOME BEFORE PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX EXPENSE		313		1,115		1,705		2,855
Provision for income tax expense		110		367		564		955
NET INCOME	\$	203	\$	748	\$	1,141	\$	1,900
Weighted everage charge outstanding	2	367,246	2	354,563	,	2,364,817		2,351,633
Weighted average shares outstanding Basic earnings per share	2,. \$	0.09	\$ \$	0.32	\$	0.48	\$	0.81
Basic earnings per snare	φ	0.09	Ф	0.32	φ	0.40	φ	0.61
Weighted average shares outstanding	2,	367,246	2,	354,563	2	2,364,817		2,351,633
Effect of dilutive securities		10,280		35,343		17,807		37,778
Weighted average shares outstanding, adjusted for dilutive securities	2	377,526	2	389,906	,	2,382,624		2,389,411
Earnings per share assuming full dilution	\$	0.09	\$	0.31	\$	0.48	\$	0.80
	Ψ	0.07	Ψ	0.01	Ψ	3.10	Ψ	0.00

4

NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Unaudited

(Dollars in thousands)

As of September 30, 2008

		Common	Retained	Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Comp	orehensive
	Total	Stock	Earnings	Income/(Loss)	Iı	ncome
Balance, December 31, 2006	\$ 24,521	\$ 20,821	\$ 3,889	(\$ 189)		
Net income 2007	2,638		2,638		\$	2,638
Stock repurchased	(3)	(3)				
Stock options exercised	80	80				
Stock issued due to stock grants	3	3				
Stock issued to directors	73	73				
Equity based compensation expense	98	98				
Tax benefits of exercised options	25	25				
5% stock dividend	0	1,942	(1,942)			
Fractional shares paid in cash	(4)		(4)			
Cash dividend (\$0.18 per share)	(403)		(403)			
Change in unrealized losses on available for sale securities, net of taxes	318			318		318
Comprehensive income						2,956
Balance December 31, 2007	27,346	23,039	4,178	129		
Net income, 2008, year-to-date	1,141	.,	1,141			1,141
Stock issued to directors	69	69	,			,
Equity-based compensation expense	77	77				
Cash dividend (\$0.20 per share)	(474)		(474)			
Change in unrealized gain on available for sale securities, net of	(')		(')			
taxes	(46)			(46)		(46)
	, ,			, ,		
Comprehensive income					\$	1,095
Balance, end-of-quarter, September 30, 2008	\$ 28,113	\$ 23,185	\$ 4,845	\$ 83		
Disclosure of 2008 reclassification amount:						
Unrealized holding gain on available for sale securities	(\$70)					
Reclassification adjustment for gains realized in income	0					
Net unrealized gain	(70)					
Tax effect	(24)					
Net of tax amount	(\$46)					

5

NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

Unaudited

(Dollars in thousands)

	Nine-months, year Septeml			
		2008		2007
Net income	\$	1,141	\$	1,900
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activities:				
Provision for loan losses		1,000		270
Depreciation and amortization		569		416
Net decrease in loans held for sale		1,373		798
Net increase in bank owned life insurance		(99)		(96)
Foreclosed real estate activity (net)		(293)		0
Change in assets and liabilities:				
Accrued interest receivable		(16)		(372)
Other assets		(348)		(111)
Interest payable		(294)		132
Other liabilities		(142)		315
Equity-based compensation expense		77		69
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES		2,968		3,321
Cash flows from investing activities:		,		- /-
Net (increase)/decrease in federal funds sold/interest bearing balances at other financial institutions		3,119		(1,736)
Net (increase)/decrease in investment securities		10,332		(7,531)
Net increase in loans		(57,825)		(34,573)
Purchase of premises and equipment net of gain or loss on asset disposal		(5,671)		(1,804)
		, , ,		
NET CASH USED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES		(50,045)		(45,644)
Cash flows from financing activities:		(20,0.2)		(10,011)
Net increase in deposits		37,372		38,884
Net increase/(decrease) in securities sold under agreement to repurchase		(11,336)		6,016
Net increase/(decrease) in federal funds purchased		8,910		(3,630)
Repayment of borrowed funds		0		(2,814)
Proceeds from issuance of borrowed funds		10,738		0
Cash received from stock sales		69		102
Cash paid to repurchase stock		0		(3)
Cash dividend paid		(474)		(408)
•				
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES		45,279		38,147
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents:		(1,798)		(4,176)
Cash and due from banks, beginning of year		8,155		12,132
cush and due from banks, organising or year		0,133		12,132
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS, END OF PERIOD	\$	6,357	\$	7,956
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOWS INFORMATION	φ	0,557	Ψ	1,930
Cash paid during the year for:				
Interest	\$	8.016	\$	6.483
Interest	Ψ	0,010	Ψ	0,703
Income tores	\$	704	\$	927
Income taxes	2	/04	3	827

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net change in unrealized gain on securities available for sale	(\$46)	\$ 31
Acquisition of real estate and other repossessed assets in settlement of loans	\$ 299	\$ 0

6

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Per share data is in actual dollars, other amounts are in thousands or millions, as noted)

Unaudited

NOTE 1. Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Northwest Bancorporation, Inc. (the Company) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Inland Northwest Bank (the Bank). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The foregoing unaudited interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Accordingly, these financial statements do not include all of the disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for complete financial statements. These unaudited interim consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. In the opinion of management, the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements furnished herein include all adjustments, all of which are of a normal recurring nature, necessary for a fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented. The results of operations for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results for the full year. Certain prior year balances have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on retained earnings or net income as previously presented.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities known to exist as of the date the financial statements are published, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Uncertainties with respect to such estimates and assumptions are inherent in the preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements; accordingly, it is possible that the actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions, which could have a material effect on the reported amounts of the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

NOTE 2. Equity Based Compensation

On May 15, 2006, shareholders approved the Inland Northwest Bank 2006 Share Incentive Plan (the Plan) and the issuance of shares of common stock of the Company pursuant to the Plan. This Plan is an amendment and restatement of the Inland Northwest Bank Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan originally effective July 21, 1992, as revised December 21, 1993, December 21, 1999 and April 16, 2002. Prior to 2006, the Plan allowed only for the award of stock options; with the approval of the amendment and restatement of the Plan in May 2006, the Company was also authorized to grant restricted stock awards to key employees of the Bank.

Restricted stock-award activity in 2007 is detailed in Note 14 Stock Based Compensation in the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. There have been no restricted stock-award grants in 2008. Likewise, no shares have been issued in 2008 in connection with previously granted restricted stock-awards. The number of restricted stock-awards outstanding as of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

	Number of shares	ave value	eighted rage fair at date of grant
Outstanding at December 31, 2006	10,658	\$	17.11
Granted	5,050		13.34
Forfeited	-567		17.11
Exercised	-168		17.11
Outstanding at December 31, 2007	14,973	\$	15.84
Granted			
Forfeited			
Exercised			
Outstanding at September 30, 2008	14,973	\$	15.84

Stock options outstanding at the end of last year are also detailed in Note 14 Stock Based Compensation in the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. Since the adoption of the amendments to the Plan in May 2006, stock options are, for the most part, expected to be awarded during the process of recruiting new employees to the Bank.

Stock options vest over a five-year period and expire ten years from the date of the grant. The exercise price of each option equals the fair market value of the Company s stock on the date of grant.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes model uses a number of assumptions, including: a risk-free discount rate of interest, which is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant; the expected life of options granted, which represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding; expected volatilities, based on the historical volatility of the Company s stock price; a historical forfeiture rate, which has been nominal; and, expected dividend yield, which reflects the Company s expected future dividend rate. The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of options granted in 2006 and 2007 are detailed in Note 14 Stock Based Compensation in the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. No stock options have been awarded during 2008.

The number of stock options outstanding and exercisable as of September 30, 2008 is as follows:

	Shares actual	a	eighted- verage cise price
Outstanding options, December 31, 2007	125,988	\$	10.25
Granted			
Exercised			
Forfeited			
Outstanding options, September 30, 2008	125,988	\$	10.25
Options exercisable, September 30, 2008	110,002		

8

The method of accounting for stock-based compensation expense is also detailed in Note 14 Stock Based Compensation in the audited consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. The expense related to the grant of stock options is recognized over the vesting period of the stock options in accordance with results obtained using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes option pricing model provides for a greater recognition of expense in the early years of the vesting period, with decreasing amounts to be recognized in subsequent years.

NOTE 3. Securities

Most of the securities in the Bank s investment portfolio are classified as available-for-sale and are stated at fair value, and unrealized holding gains and losses, net of related deferred taxes, are reported as a separate component of shareholders equity. Realized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities sales are reported as part of non-interest income based on the net proceeds and the adjusted carrying amount of the securities sold, using the specific identification method. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the effective yield method over the period to maturity unless the security is called prior to maturity. When a security is called prior to maturity any remaining premium or discount is reported as non-interest income; un-accreted discount on called securities will increase non-interest income, unamortized premium on called securities will reduce non-interest income. There were no securities sold in the three months or nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007; consequently, there were no gains or losses included in non-interest income due to the sale of securities. Several securities were called prior to maturity during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2008; remaining discounts on those securities resulted in \$18 thousand in non-interest income for that period. Carrying amounts and fair values at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 were as follows (in thousands):

	September 30, 2008			, 2008	December 31, 2007				
	Amor	rtized	Fair		Am	ortized		Fair	
	Cost Value		Value Cost		Value				
Securities available-for-sale:									
Obligations of federal government agencies	\$ 8	,491	\$	8,536	\$ 2	23,466	\$ 2	23,636	
US Treasury securities	2.	,997		3,000		2,964		2,970	
Mortgage backed securities	6	,415		6,542		1,784		1,821	
Corporate Bonds		500		451		500		483	
TOTAL	\$ 18.	.403	\$ 1	18,529	\$ 2	28,714	\$ 2	28,910	
	7	,	-	,	-		-	,	
Available-for-sale marketable equity securities ¹	\$	250	\$	250	\$	250	\$	250	
Securities held-to-maturity:									
Obligations of states, municipalities and political subdivisions	7.	,629		7,632		7,650		7,693	
TOTAL	\$ 7.	,629	\$	7,632	\$	7,650	\$	7,693	
TOTAL	Ψ	,02)	Ψ	1,032	Ψ	7,030	Ψ	1,075	
Equity securities with a limited market ²	\$	395	\$	395	\$	395	\$	395	

9

- (1) Represents those available-for-sale marketable equity securities that are recorded in Other Assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Securities consist of a \$250 thousand investment, at fair market value, in the common stock of a bank holding company headquartered in Bellevue, WA. As this company is relatively new, it is anticipated that it will be some time before an active market in its stock develops. To determine fair market value, the Company reviews the financial performance of the bank subsidiary of the Bellevue-based holding company and, pursuant to the latest review, believes that the current fair market value approximates cost.
- (2) Represents those equity securities with limited marketability that are recorded in Other Assets, on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. These securities are reviewed quarterly to determine whether there has been any impairment in value. Securities consist of a \$155 thousand equity investment in a Trust created by the Company in connection with issuance of trust preferred securities, a \$190 thousand investment in the common stock of Pacific Coast Bankers Bank and a \$50 thousand investment in an economic development company, each of these investments is reported at cost.

NOTE 4. Loans Loan detail by category is as follows (dollars in thousands):

	September 30 2008	December 31 2007
1-4 family and multi-family real estate loans	\$ 30,969	\$ 26,155
Commercial real estate, term loans	136,225	111,277
Commercial, construction loans	72,455	54,564
Commercial loans, non-real estate	64,777	58,624
Consumer loans	31,601	27,448
TOTAL LOANS	\$ 336,027	\$ 278,068
Allowance for loan losses	(3,488)	(2,711)
Net deferred loan fees	(1,001)	(644)
NET LOANS	\$ 331,538	\$ 274,713

10

NOTE 5. Allowance for Loan Losses

The Bank maintains an allowance for loan losses at a level that represents management s best estimate of the probable credit losses inherent in the Bank s loan portfolio as of the balance sheet date. Future credit losses are estimated through an analysis of various factors affecting the performance of the loan portfolio, including: individual review of problem loans, including an evaluation of the quality of underlying collateral; current business conditions and the Bank s historical loan loss experience; the term, in years, that the average loan is expected to remain on the Bank s books; and other factors that management determines to be relevant at the time of the analysis. In accordance with accounting and regulatory requirements, the portion of the allowance relating to unused loan commitments and other off-balance sheet items is reclassified to Other liabilities. Changes in the allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated were as follows (in thousands):

	Three-mo 9/30/2008	onths ended 9/30/2007	Nine-months 9/30/2008	YTD ended 9/30/2007
Balance, beginning of period	\$ 3,225	\$ 2,693	\$ 2,711	\$ 2,586
Add reserve for probable losses on unused loan commitments and off-balance sheet items (OBS)	96	236	267	199
Balance, beginning of period, including OBS reserve	3,321	2,929	2,978	2,785
Provision for loan losses	625	90	1,000	270
Loan Charge-offs	(357)	(45)	(406)	(90)
Loan Recoveries	5	8	22	17
Balance, end of period, prior to adjustment for off-balance sheet items	3,594	2,982	3,594	2,982
Reclassification of reserve for probable losses on unused loan commitments and off-balance sheet items to Other liabilities	(106)	(269)	(106)	(269)
Balance, end of period	\$ 3,488	\$ 2,713	\$ 3,488	\$ 2,713

NOTE 6. Borrowed Funds

The Bank has a line of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle (the FHLB) and operating lines of credit with several other financial institutions. The FHLB line provides the Bank access to long-term funding, with repayment terms as long as thirty years, as well as short-term funding to meet current liquidity needs. The operating lines with other financial institutions are available for short-term funding, to meet current liquidity needs. Although general market trends in connection with the current distress in financial markets may impact the availability of such operating lines from other financial institutions, the Bank believes that the financial institutions with which it has relationships are stable and that the Bank will continue to have sufficient access to short term funding. There can be no assurance that short-term funding will continue to be available.

The following table outlines amounts outstanding and the availability of borrowed funds for the periods covered in this report:

					Outstand	ing	as of:
	e amount (1) thousands)	Maturity (3)	Collateral	Purpose	9/30/2008 (\$ in the		(31/2007 nds)
Federal Home Loan Bank of			General pledge	Line of credit, with access to			
Seattle (2)	\$ 58,251	Annual	of assets (4)	short and long-term funds	\$ 21,183	\$	8,486
KeyBank of Washington (5)	\$ 10,000	Annual	Unsecured	Short-term line of credit			
				Supports foreign currency			
	\$ 100	Annual	Unsecured	transactions			
	\$ 100	Annual	Unsecured	Supports letters of credit			
Pacific Coast Bankers Bank (5)	\$ 10,000	Annual	Unsecured	Short-term line of credit			
U.S. Bank ⁽⁵⁾	\$ 1,500	Annual	Unsecured	Short-term line of credit	1,500		

Zions Bank (5)	\$ 5,000	Annual	Unsecured	Short-term line of credit	2,510	
				Total	25,193	8,486
Less overnight borrowings reported as Federal Funds Purchased on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition					(8,910)	
				Total borrowed funds	\$ 16,283	\$ 8,486

⁽¹⁾ The FHLB line amount is computed as 15% of Bank assets as of the reporting date and will change from quarter to quarter as asset totals change.

Table of Contents

- (2) Access to the FHLB line is conditioned on stock ownership and additional stock purchases may be required to access the full amount of the line. The FHLB may be used for overnight borrowings (federal funds purchased) or for short-term (between 7 days and 1-year) or intermediate/long-term borrowings (as long as thirty years). The balances outstanding for the reporting dates are predominately intermediate-term, with just \$233 thousand maturing after 2013.
- (3) Correspondents providing credit to the Bank typically inform the Bank on an annual basis that they have reviewed the Bank s financial condition and that they will continue to provide the Bank with access to credit on an uncommitted basis. Review of the Bank s financial condition is likely performed more often, as the Bank files its quarterly financial reports.
- (4) The FHLB requires a general pledge of all Bank assets. Actual advances are limited by the amount of single family and multi-family real estate loans in the Bank s loan portfolio, as well as certain commercial real estate loans. In practice, these loans provide the FHLB with adequate collateral coverage, exclusive of other Bank assets. The Bank may be unable to access the full amount of its FHLB line if the amount of qualifying real estate loans available to pledge in support of advances against the line is inadequate; at September 30, 2008, the amount of qualifying collateral pledged to the FHLB limited total advances to approximately \$53 million, including advances already taken.
- (5) Federal funds purchased line of credit to cover short-term liquidity needs.

NOTE 7. Capital Lease Liability

The capital lease liability outstanding on September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 is related to a ground lease, with a purchase option, that the Bank entered into in early 2005. A copy of the ground lease was filed as Exhibit 10.1.10 to the Company s Form 10-KSB filing on March 24, 2005. As a capitalized lease, the value of the property is included as an asset on the consolidated statement of financial condition in Premises and equipment, net and the net present value of future payments is included as a liability in Capital lease liability.

NOTE 8. Material Contracts

In the third-quarter of 2006, the Bank entered into an agreement with the Spokane Public Facilities District (the PFD) for the purchase of naming rights to the Spokane Opera House; that facility is now known as the INB Performing Arts Center. Under the agreement, the Bank will pay the PFD \$150 thousand per year for a period of ten years. The contract expires July 20, 2016; however, the Bank has the right to extend the contract for an additional ten years, at an annual rate that will not exceed the current annual rate by more than twenty-percent. Expenses related to the agreement are recognized as Other operating expense and reduce net income by about \$25 thousand per quarter.

In the second-quarter of 2008, the Bank entered into a contract for the construction of a new branch office, to be located in Airway Heights, Washington. The contract is in the amount of \$1.8 million, exclusive of sales tax and subject to any change orders that may occur during the course of construction. At September 30, 2008, approximately \$1.2 million remains to be paid.

12

Table of Contents

NOTE 9. Junior Subordinated Debentures

In June 2005, the Company issued junior subordinated debentures with an aggregate value of \$5.155 million to Northwest Bancorporation Capital Trust I (the Trust), with interest fixed at 5.95% through June 30, 2010, thereafter re-pricing quarterly at three-month LIBOR plus 1.70%. The Trust issued \$155 thousand of common securities to the Company and capital securities with an aggregate liquidation amount of \$5 million to third-party investors. The common securities are included in Other assets on the consolidated statement of financial condition; the subordinated debentures are detailed individually in this report and are included in Borrowed funds in the consolidated financial statements included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. The subordinated debentures are includable as Tier I capital for regulatory purposes. The subordinated debentures and the capital securities pay interest and dividends, respectively, on a quarterly basis, which are included in interest expense. The subordinated debentures will mature on June 30, 2035, at which time the capital securities must be redeemed. The subordinated debentures and capital securities can be redeemed prior to maturity, at the Company's discretion, in whole or in part, beginning June 30, 2010, at par value. The Company has provided a full and unconditional guarantee of the obligations of the Trust under the capital securities in the event of default. Northwest Bancorporation Capital Trust I is not consolidated in these financial statements, pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities. The Company reports the junior subordinated debentures within the liabilities section of the consolidated statements of financial condition.

The following table presents a summary of trust preferred securities at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

Name of Trust	liq an pr	gregate uidation nount of trust eferred curities	liqu an cor	gregate idation nount of mmon upital urities	pr am j subo	gregate rincipal nount of junior ordinated pentures	Stated maturity	Per annum interest rate	Extension <pre>period</pre>	Redemption option
Northwest Bancorporation Capital Trust I	\$	5,000	\$	155	\$	5,155	2035	5.95%	20	On or after 6/30/2010
									quarters	

NOTE 10. Other Borrowings

On August 29, 2008, the Company obtained a loan in the amount of \$3 million from another community financial institution. Proceeds of the loan were injected into the Company s bank subsidiary in order to enhance the Bank s capital position. Interest on the loan is calculated at an interest rate of 8% per annum and monthly payments are based on an amortization of 120 months. The loan matures in 5 years, with a balloon payment of approximately \$1.8 million due on August 31, 2013. The Company pledged Bank stock as collateral for the loan.

NOTE 11. Common Stock

On April 17, 2007, the Board of Directors declared an eighteen-cent (\$0.18) per share annual cash dividend which was paid on June 15, 2007 to shareholders of record as of May 11, 2007. On April 15, 2008, the Board of Directors declared a twenty-cent (\$0.20) per share annual cash dividend which was paid on June 13, 2008 to shareholders of record as of May 9, 2008.

Table of Contents

Note 12. Fair Value Measurement

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, *Fair Value Measurements* (Statement 157). Statement 157 provides enhanced guidance for measuring assets and liabilities using fair value and applies to situations where other standards require or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at fair value. Statement 157 also requires expanded disclosure of items that are measured at fair value, the information used to measure fair value, and the effect of fair value measurements on earnings.

Valuation techniques are based upon observable and unobservable inputs. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect the Company s assumptions about market value. These two types of inputs create the following fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1 Quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets.
- Level 2 Quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations whose inputs are observable.
- Level 3 Instruments whose significant value drivers are unobservable.

The following table summarizes the Company s financial instruments that were measured at fair value at September 30, 2008:

	Fair Value (dollars in	Fair Value M Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical	Measurements Usi Significant Other Observable Inputs	ing Significant Unobservable Inputs
	thousands)	Assets (Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)
Description of Financial Instrument				
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis				
Securities available-for-sale	\$ 18,529	3,000	15,529	0
Foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets	\$ 299	0	299	0
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis				
Impaired loans	\$ 10,263	0	0	10,263

The Bank s U.S. Treasury securities included in securities available-for-sale trade in a very active market of identical instruments and their valuation is therefore included under Level 1. The remainder of the Bank s securities available-for-sale at September 30, 2008 primarily consisted of U.S. Agency obligations and mortgage-backed securities that trade in active markets. These securities are included under Level 2 because there may or may not be daily trades in each of the individual securities and because the valuation of these securities may be based on instruments that are not exactly identical to those owned by the Bank. Temporary changes in the valuation of securities available-for-sale do not affect current income; instead, unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities are reported as a net amount in accumulated comprehensive income. Declines in the fair value of individual available-for-sale securities below their cost that are other than temporary result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value. No such write-downs have occurred during the periods presented.

Foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets are carried on the Bank s books at estimated net sales value; valuation is obtained by reducing current market value by the cost of preparing the asset for sale and any selling or other costs that will be incurred. Current market value is updated at least annually and is typically

14

Table of Contents

determined by applying a discount to an independent appraisal; market value is be updated more frequently when appropriate. When an asset is transferred from loans to foreclosed real estate and other repossessed assets it is written-down to its net sales value, if necessary, by a charge to the allowance for loan losses; there will not be a direct effect on income at the time of the transfer, unless the write-down causes the Bank to increase its provision to the allowance for loan losses. If subsequent periodic valuations of the asset indicate a decline in value, the Bank will write the asset down to its newly determined net sales value. No such write-downs have occurred during the periods presented.

Impaired loans are individually reviewed to determine the amount of each loan considered to be at risk of non-collection. In determining the amount of each loan at risk, the Bank reviews real property appraisals, equipment valuations, accounts receivable and payable listings and other financial information. The estimated amount of impaired loans at risk of non-collection at September 30, 2008 was \$778 thousand and is included as a part of the allowance for loan losses as a component of the category Specifically Identified Potential Loss. The Bank has recorded \$1 million as an allowance for loan losses through the first nine months of 2008.

Note 13. Subsequent Event Troubled Asset Relief Program

On October 3, 2008, in response to upheaval within the financial markets, the President signed into law the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 (the Act), which authorized the United States Department of Treasury (the UST) to establish the Troubled Assets Relief Program (TARP) to purchase troubled assets held by financial institutions. Under the TARP program the UST is authorized to purchase, and to make and fund commitments to purchase, troubled assets from any financial institution, on such terms and conditions as are determined by the UST. The purpose of this program is to restore confidence and stability to the financial markets and to encourage the flow of credit within the financial system.

On October 14, 2008, the UST announced the terms of the TARP Capital Purchase Program (CPP), through which the UST will make capital investments in banking institutions by purchasing senior preferred shares.

The terms of the CPP program are standardized and any qualifying financial institution may elect to participate by notifying its federal banking agency by November 14, 2008, 5:00 p.m. Only institutions determined to be eligible for CPP by the UST and the financial institution s primary federal regulator will be allowed to participate. Once the eligible institutions are selected, the UST will determine the allocations of capital to each institution and has announced that it will fund the purchase of the preferred stock no later than December 31, 2008.

The terms of the CPP program have been announced as follows:

Participating institutions will be required to subscribe for no less than the minimum subscription amount of 1 percent of their risk-weighted assets. The maximum subscription amount to be allowed is the lesser of \$25 billion or 3 percent of risk-weighted assets.

The senior preferred shares to be issued to the UST pursuant to the program will qualify as Tier 1 capital and will rank senior to common stock. The senior preferred shares will be pari passu, or equal in priority to, existing preferred shares, other than preferred shares which by their terms rank junior to any other existing preferred shares. The senior preferred shares will pay a cumulative dividend rate of 5 percent per annum for the first five years and will reset to a rate of 9 percent per annum after year five. The senior preferred shares will generally be non-voting, but will retain class voting rights on matters that could adversely affect the shares. The

15

Table of Contents

senior preferred shares will be callable at par after three years. Prior to the end of three years, the senior preferred shares may be redeemed with the proceeds from a qualifying equity offering of any Tier 1 perpetual preferred or common stock. The UST may also transfer the senior preferred shares to a third party at any time.

In conjunction with the purchase of senior preferred shares, the UST will receive warrants to purchase common stock with an aggregate market price equal to 15 percent of the senior preferred investment. The per share exercise price of the shares underlying the warrants will be the market price of the participating institution s common stock at the time of issuance, calculated on a 20-trading day trailing average.

Companies participating in the program are required to adopt the UST standards for executive compensation and corporate governance, for the period during which the UST holds equity issued under this program. These standards generally apply to the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, plus the next three most highly compensated executive officers. These standards require participating institutions to: (1) ensure that incentive compensation for senior executives does not encourage unnecessary and excessive risks that threaten the value of the financial institution; (2) require clawback of any bonus or incentive compensation paid to a senior executive based on statements of earnings, gains or other criteria that are later proven to be materially inaccurate; (3) prohibit making any golden parachute payment to a senior executive based on the Internal Revenue Code provision; and (4) agree not to deduct for tax purposes executive compensation in excess of \$500,000 for each senior executive.

Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are considering the favorable features of the program, the costs and potentially negative features of the program and those attributes and consequences of the program that have yet to be fully detailed by the Treasury. The most obvious positive consequences of participating in the program are that it should allow for growth in lending by the Bank and that it significantly enhances Bank and Company capital, which is desirable if the currently volatile financial environment persists for some period of time. On the other hand, Company shareholders would experience a small dilution in ownership if the Treasury exercises the warrants to purchase Company common stock that it will be granted if the Company participates in the program and the dividend rate on the preferred stock steps up to 9% if the preferred stock is not redeemed within five years. There are a number of other features and issues that management is investigating prior to deciding whether to participate in the program. If the Company participates in the program, the Treasury has indicated that it intends to fund the purchase of the preferred stock no later than December 31, 2008.

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program

On October 14, 2008, the FDIC announced the Transaction Account Guarantee Program as part of the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program. The FDIC expects the program to enhance confidence in the safety and soundness of non-interest bearing transaction accounts generally held by businesses for the purposes of payroll processing and other payment processing functions. Coverage under the new program, funded through insurance premiums paid by participating financial institutions, is in addition to the coverage announced under the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008. That Act temporarily raised the basic limit on federal deposit insurance coverage from \$100,000 to \$250,000 per depositor. The increased coverage provisions under both the Transaction Account Guarantee Program and the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 are currently scheduled to expire on December 31, 2009. The Bank has determined that it will participate in this program through its currently scheduled expiration date.

The Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program also provides for the guarantee of newly issued senior unsecured debt of eligible financial institutions. The Debt Guarantee Program, funded through insurance premiums on newly issued debt, is intended to increase liquidity by helping eligible institutions to replace existing debt that is scheduled to mature on or before June 30, 2009. The Bank has not yet determined whether it will participate in this provision of the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program.

16

Item 2. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion contains a review of the consolidated operating results and financial condition for the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2008 for Northwest Bancorporation, Inc. (the Company) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Inland Northwest Bank (the Bank). When warranted, comparisons are made to the same three-month periods in 2007 and/or to the immediately preceding three-month period (second-quarter 2008). The discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements (unaudited) and related notes contained elsewhere in this report. The reader is assumed to have access to the Company s Form 10-K for the previous year ended December 31, 2007, which contains additional statistics and explanations. All numbers, except per share data, are expressed in thousands of dollars, unless otherwise noted.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains information that may constitute forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that may cause actual results to differ materially from those projected, including but not limited to the following: the concentration of loans of the Company s banking subsidiary, particularly with respect to commercial and residential real estate lending; changes in the regulatory environment and increases in associated costs, particularly on-going compliance expenses and resource allocation needs in response to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related rules and regulations; vendor quality and efficiency; employee recruitment and retention; the Company s ability to control risks associated with rapidly changing technology, both from an internal perspective as well as for external providers; increased competition among financial institutions; fluctuating interest rate environments; and similar matters. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise or update the forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after the date of this release.

SUMMARY OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC) defines critical accounting policies as those that require the application of management s most difficult, subjective, or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain and may change in future periods. The Company s management has identified the accounting policies described in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 as filed on the Form 10-K, as policies that, due to the judgments, estimates and assumptions inherent in those policies are critical to an understanding of the Company s Consolidated Financial Statements and Management s Discussion and Analysis.

17

HIGHLIGHTS

Northwest Bancorporation, Inc.

Unaudited

	Nine mon		%	
(\$ in thousands except per share data)	9/30/2008	9/30/2007	Variance	change
Interest income	\$ 17,397	\$ 15,741	\$ 1,656	10.5%
Interest expense	7,722	6,615	1,107	16.7%
Net interest income	9,675	9,126	549	6.0%
Provision for loan loss	1,000	270	730	270.4%
Net interest income after provision for loan loss	8,675	8,856	(181)	(-2.0%)
Noninterest income	1,861	1,671	190	11.4%
Noninterest expense	8,831	7,672	1,159	15.1%
Income before provision for income tax expense	1,705	2,855	(1,150)	(-40.3%)
Provision for income tax expense	564	955	(391)	(-40.9%)
Net income	\$ 1,141	\$ 1,900	\$ (759)	(-39.9%)
Basic earnings per common share	\$ 0.48	\$ 0.81	\$ (0.33)	(-40.3%)
Diluted earnings per common share	\$ 0.48	\$ 0.80	\$ (0.32)	(-39.8%)
Year-to-date financial ratios, annualized				
Return on average assets	0.42%	0.84%		
Return on average equity	5.44%	10.00%		
Net interest income to average earning assets	3.79%	4.37%		
Efficiency ratio	76.6%	71.1%		
Noninterest income to average assets	0.68%	0.74%		
Noninterest expense to average assets	3.23%	3.41%		
Ending stockholders equity to average assets	7.56%	8.46%		
Nonperforming loans to gross loans	2.49%	0.33%		
Allowance for loan losses to gross loans	1.04%	1.08%		

The Company earned \$1.14 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2008, a decrease of 40% compared to net income of \$1.9 million for the same period last year. The reduction in income from the 2007 period is the result of increases in the provision for loan losses and other non-interest expense, detailed below, that were greater than increases in net interest income and non-interest income.

Loans and deposits at September 30, 2008 showed growth rates of 33% and 24%, respectively, over September 30, 2007. Total assets grew 22%, year-over-year.

Non-performing assets increased by more than \$7 million year-over-year. An increase of that magnitude, assuming an average loan rate of around 7.0%, reduces net income by approximately \$27 thousand per month. If the Bank has to take ownership of and liquidate the collateral securing the loans it is likely that some losses will occur that will have to be charged to the allowance for loan losses. The Bank has analyzed the likely loss that would occur if all non-performing loans were to be liquidated and it has set aside approximately \$562 thousand in order to reduce the book value of these assets to their estimated liquidation value. It is possible that losses could be greater than currently anticipated, which would likely result in the need to expense those losses as they are incurred and/or to expense additional amounts to the loan loss reserve.

Other than reporting significantly higher non-performing assets, the Bank has avoided many of the problems that are being reported by other financial institutions. The Bank avoided sub-prime mortgages, did not invest in preferred stock in Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac, does not have any goodwill on its books subject to impairment testing, has maintained a conservative portfolio of securities that has not been materially affected by current economic conditions, and has not seen significant deterioration of the financial condition of its borrowers.

18

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the primary source of the Bank s revenue. Net interest income is the difference between interest income derived from earning assets, primarily loans and investment securities, and interest expense associated with interest-bearing liabilities, primarily deposits, securities sold under agreement to repurchase and borrowed funds. The volume and mix of earning assets and funding sources, market rates of interest, demand for loans, and the availability of deposits affect net interest income.

The September 30, 2008 third-quarter net interest margin as a percentage of average earning assets was 3.67%, a decrease of 0.11% from second-quarter results of 3.78% and a decrease of 0.25% from the 3.92% net interest margin reported for the quarter ended March 31, 2008. For the nine-month period ended September 30, 2008, net interest margin as a percentage of average earning assets was 3.79%, a decrease of 0.58% from the 4.37% net interest margin reported for the comparable period ended September 30, 2007. This reduction in net interest margin is the result of Bank assets re-pricing more quickly than Bank liabilities in a declining interest rate environment. In September 2007, the Federal Reserve initiated the first of a series of interest rate cuts that reduced the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (the WSJ Prime Rate) from 7.75% to 5.00% by April 30, 2008. Approximately \$120 million of the loans in the Bank s loan portfolio are tied to WSJ Prime Rate and re-price immediately when the WSJ Prime Rate changes. A quarter-point (0.25%) change in the WSJ Prime Rate affects the Bank s loan interest income by approximately \$300 thousand per year. The Bank s funding sources also re-price when rates change; however, there is a meaningful lag in the timing of re-pricing deposits and other liabilities when compared to re-pricing loans.

Bank management has chosen, in most cases, to not place interest rate floors or ceilings on adjustable rate loans; consequently, net interest margin will, initially, decline in a declining rate environment and improve in a rising rate environment. The effect on net interest margin is the greatest immediately after a rate change. Over time, as deposits and borrowed funds, particularly certificates of deposit, mature and are re-priced or replaced, net interest margin will recover. In addition, deposit rates have been slow to drop and have also affected the net interest margin, as some financial institutions, both in the Bank s local market and nationally, have attempted to attract and retain deposits to meet liquidity needs. During the three months and nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Bank was also more reliant upon certificates of deposits to fund loans than was the case in 2007. Offsetting the reduction in net interest margin were significantly higher loan balances, which contributed to an increase in net interest income.

Table I presents condensed balance sheet information for the Company, together with interest income and yields on average interest-earning assets and interest expense and rates on average interest-bearing liabilities for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2008 compared to the nine-month period ended September 30, 2007. Variances between the first-half 2008 and prior periods are discussed following the table.

19

TABLE I

Distribution of Assets, Liabilities and Shareholder Equity; Interest Rates and Interest Differential.

AVERAGE BALANCE/INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE RATES

Nine-months, year-to-date, ended September 30, 2008 and 2007

(Dollars in Thousands)

Unaudited

	2008 Average balance	2008 Interest income / expense	2008 Average yield earned / rate paid	2007 Average balance	2007 Interest income / expense	2007 Average yield earned / rate paid
ASSETS:		-	•		-	-
Loans, gross 4 & 5	\$ 307,088	\$ 16,302	7.08%	\$ 230,263	\$ 13,965	8.09%
Taxable investments	20,448	757	4.94%	31,998	1,252	5.22%
Nontaxable investments ²	7,321	229	4.17%	4,718	112	3.17%
FHLB stock	746	6	1.07%	646	3	0.62%
Federal funds sold & interest-bearing deposits with banks	5,012	103	2.74%	10,578	409	5.16%
Total interest earning assets	340,615	17,397	6.81%	278,203	15,741	7.54%
Less reserve for possible loan losses	(3,022)			(2,675)		
Cash and due from banks	7,119			9,108		
Other non-earning assets	19,971			15,184		
Total assets	364,683			299,820		
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY NOW accounts Money market accounts	14,274 32,161	91 445	0.85% 1.84%	15,033 39,182	126 745	1.12% 2.54%
Savings accounts	28,775	508	2.35%	13,402	165	1.64%
Other time deposits	171,233	5,719	4.45%	116,702	4,264	4.87%
Total interest-bearing deposits	246,443	6,763	3.66%	184,319	5,300	3.83%
Securities sold under repurchase agreements	18,569	205	1.47%	27,315	883	4.31%
Borrowed funds	13,789	497	4.81%	4,615	199	5.75%
Junior subordinated note ⁶	5,155	234	6.05%	5,155	233	6.03%
Other borrowings	358	23	8.57%			0.00%
Total borrowed funds	37,871	959	3.38%	37,085	1,315	4.73%
Total interest-bearing liabilities	284,314	7,722	3.62%	221,404	6,615	3.98%
Demand deposits	47,722			50,786		
Other liabilities	4,683			2,299		
Shareholders equity	27,964			25,331		
Total liabilities and stockholders equity	\$ 364,683			\$ 299,820		

Net interest income	\$ 9,675	\$ 9,126	
Net interest spread	3.19%	3.56%	
Net interest income to average earning assets	3.79%	4.37%	
COMMENTS			

- 1. There were no out-of-period adjustments.
- 2. Yields have not been adjusted on tax-exempt investments to determine a tax-equivalent yield.

20

Table of Contents

- 3. Bank was not involved in any foreign activities.
- 4. Non-accrual loan balances are included in average loan balances; however, no interest income is imputed to non-accrual loans.
- 5. Loan fee income in the amount of \$500 thousand and \$484 thousand is included in loan interest income for 2008 and 2007, respectively.
- 6. Junior subordinated note interest is a fixed rate of 5.95%. Interest is computed using 360/365, which results in a higher annual percentage rate.
- 7. Other borrowings are at a fixed rate of 8%. Origination fee & interest computed using 360/365 result in a higher annual percentage rate. Comparing 2008 to 2007, Table I shows a 0.38% reduction of the net interest spread for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, that resulted from a 0.83% decrease in interest earned and a 0.35% decrease in interest paid.

Market rates of interest during the nine months ended September 30, 2008, as measured by the WSJ Prime Rate, were 2.43% lower than for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2007. The average rate the Bank earned on loans decreased by 1.01% from 2007 to 2008, while the average rate that the Bank earned on investments, including Federal Funds Sold, decreased by 0.58%. Not including Federal Funds Sold or dividend income on FHLB stock, investment yield decreased by 0.22%, from 4.95% to 4.73%. On the funding side, the average cost of interest bearing deposits decreased by 0.17%. While the average cost of all types of interest bearing accounts, with the exception of savings accounts, decreased year-over-year, the Bank increased its reliance upon certificates of deposits to fund loans and other investments. The average rate paid on certificates of deposit decreased from 4.87% in 2007 to 4.45% in 2008; however, certificates of deposit funded 47% of the balance sheet in 2008, compared to only 39% in 2007.

The average cost of Money Market and NOW accounts declined 0.70% and 0.27%, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007, while the average cost of savings accounts increased by 0.71%. The introduction of a high-yield savings account was responsible for the increase in the average rate paid on savings and for the movement by customers of funds from Money Market accounts to savings accounts. The Bank introduced the high-yield savings account to compete with premium Money Market accounts being offered by its competitors.

The rate of interest paid on Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase is tied to rates available on U.S. Treasury Bills; as a result, the reduction in the average rate of interest paid on Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase is highly reflective of the reduction in market rates overall. In fact, the average cost of Securities Sold Under Agreement to Repurchase has dropped 2.84% in 2008 compared to 2007. Pricing on borrowed funds, primarily from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Seattle (the FHLB), declined significantly year-over-year; however, most of the Bank s borrowed funds are fixed rate and fixed maturity; consequently, the Bank s cost of borrowed funds only declined by 0.72% for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007. Loan fee income accounted for as an adjustment to interest income was virtually unchanged from year-to-year.

The average balance sheets for the nine-month periods ending September 30, 2008 and 2007 are reflective of the movement of assets from investment securities to loans and of deposits to higher yielding accounts. On the asset side, loans increased from 77% of average assets to 84%, and investment securities, including federal funds sold, dropped from 16% to 9%. Average non-earning assets for each year remained constant, at 5%.

The Bank experienced more movement on the liability side of the balance sheet. When compared to average assets, non-interest bearing demand deposits dropped from 17% in 2007 to 13% in 2008. NOW accounts, which are modestly priced compared to other interest bearing deposits, dropped from 5% to 4%. Savings accounts grew from 4% to 8%, with the growth in savings centered in a high-yield savings product that competes with premium money market accounts offered at other financial institutions. Money market account balances

Table of Contents 30

21

decreased from 13% to 9%, with some of that reduction attributed to the movement of funds to the high-yield savings product, which pays higher rates of interest at certain balance levels than does the money market product. Larger depositors moved funds out of Securities Sold under Agreement to Repurchase accounts because interest rates on those accounts are tied to U.S. Treasury-Bill yields, which declined throughout the year. As rates dropped, customers moved funds into higher yielding accounts, reducing Repurchase balances from 9% to 5% of the average balance sheet. As previously noted, the biggest change in liabilities was in certificates of deposit (CDs), which now fund 47% of the balance sheet, up from 39% one year ago.

The following table sets forth a summary of changes in net interest income due to changes in average asset and liability balances (volume) and changes in average rates (rate) for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, with dollars in thousands.

Table II

Net increase in net interest income

Change in net interest income	2008	2007	Variance	Change in income due to change in volume	Change in rate	Change in income 2008 due to rate change	Net change in income due to rate and volume changes
ASSETS	2000	2007	v ar mirec	voidille	III Tute	chunge	changes
Loans	\$ 307,088	\$ 230,263	\$ 76,825	3,731	-1.01%	(1,394)	2,337
Securities	28,515	37,362	(8,847)	(311)	-0.24%	(64)	(375)
Fed funds sold/interest bearing balances	5,012	10,578	(5,566)	(162)	-2.42%	(144)	(306)
Net change in total earning assets			62,412				
Net change in income on total earning assets							1,656
LIABILITIES	14054	15.000	(550)	(6)	0.250	(20)	(2.1)
NOW accounts	14,274	15,033	(759)	(6)	-0.27%	(28)	(34)
Money Market accounts	32,161	39,182	(7,021)	(120)	-0.69%	(181)	(301)
Savings accounts	28,775	13,402	15,373	249	0.71%	94	343
Time deposits	171,233	116,702	54,531	1,782	-0.42%	(327)	1,455
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase	18,569	27,315	(8,746)	(222)	-2.84%	(456)	(678)
Borrowed funds	13,789	4,615	9,174	325	-0.94%	(27)	298
Junior Subordinated Debentures	5,155	5,155	0	0	0.03%	1	1
Other borrowings	358	0	358	23	8.57%	0	23
Net change, total interest bearing deposits			\$ 62,910				
Net change in expense on total interest bearing deposits							1,107

Net interest income before the provision for loan losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 increased by \$549 thousand over the same period of 2007 as interest income increased \$1.66 million and interest expense increased \$1.11 million. The Bank earned an additional \$3.258 million in interest income as a result of higher balances in asset accounts, offset by a reduction of \$1.602 million due to a decrease in the average earnings rate. The Bank paid an additional \$2.031 million in interest expense as a result of higher balances in liability accounts, offset by a reduction of \$924 thousand due to a decrease in the average rate of interest paid on deposits and other liabilities.

549

The net interest margin as a percentage of earning assets for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was 3.79%, which was down from the 4.37% net interest margin reported for the nine months ended September 30, 2007. Although it appeared that net interest margin had bottomed-out in about July 2008, on October 8, 2008

the Federal Reserve reduced its benchmark rate by 0.50%, which resulted in a reduction in WSJ Prime Rate from 5.0% to 4.5%. This 0.50% reduction in WSJ Prime Rate reduces Bank interest income by approximately \$50 thousand per month. Normally, we would expect deposit rates to decline concurrently with rates applied to loans and other earning assets; however, with the exception of overnight funds, deposit rates do not appear to be declining as a result of the latest rate cut. Until the financial markets stabilize, it is likely that most, if not all, of the reduction in interest income due to the October 2008 rate cut will be reflected in lower net interest income. Restoration of the net interest margin to anywhere near the level enjoyed in 2007 is expected to be unlikely without a series of rate increases by the Federal Reserve. Interest rate changes affect Bank assets earlier and to a greater degree than they do liabilities, as many of the Bank s assets are variable rate and directly tied to the WSJ Prime Rate, which means that they will re-price immediately when the WSJ Prime Rate changes. A majority of the Bank s liabilities are either fixed rate, as is the case for certificates of deposit, or are not directly tied to the WSJ Prime Rate, as is the case for money market, NOW and savings accounts. When the WSJ Prime Rate changes, existing certificates of deposit do not re-price at all and money market, NOW and savings accounts may not re-price immediately and, when they do re-price, may not reflect a change in rate equal to the change in the WSJ Prime Rate.

The Bank had anticipated that the decrease in its net interest margin would reverse in the final quarter of 2008 and show modest improvement as liabilities re-priced to lower levels and more significant improvement if rates on loans and other earning assets improved due to Federal Reserve interest rate increases. With the continued turmoil in the financial markets, however, it is not currently possible to predict the direction that the Federal Reserve might move interest rates or the magnitude of any forthcoming interest rate movements. If rates do begin to move in an upwards direction, and there are no significant changes in other factors that affect net interest margin, then we would expect to see an immediate improvement in the Bank s net interest margin. Generally speaking, the Bank strives to maintain a neutral interest rate position and does not budget for either improvement or deterioration in net interest margin due to changes in market rates. The following discussion and table outline the process that the Bank goes through to measure its interest rate risk vulnerability and presents the results of the most recent analysis performed by the Bank.

Rate Shock

The table below presents the results of the analysis performed on the Bank s financial information as of September 30, 2008. Generally, the results of our analysis have been supportive of Bank management s desire to limit volatility of net interest income to no more than plus or minus ten-percent when applying an interest rate shock of plus or minus two-hundred basis points. Rate increases of 1.00%, 2.00% and 3.00% and rate decreases of 0.50%, 1.00% and 1.50% were modeled. With the September 30, 2008 Federal Funds Rate at 1.50%, any reduction in rates of more than 1.00% seems unlikely; consequently, Bank management has determined that a rate reduction of 1.00% in the current interest rate environment is a reasonable approximation of a rate reduction of 2.00% in a more normal interest rate environment. Based upon a hypothetical rate increase of 2.00% and a rate reduction of 1.00%, the results of the net interest income analysis performed as of September 30, 2008 are within established limits.

23

It is management s goal to limit the negative impact of a change in rates of plus or minus two-hundred basis points to no more than a twenty-five percent change in economic value of equity, assuming rate increases of 1.00%, 2.00% and 3.00% and rate decreases of 0.5%, 1.0% and 1.5%. As with the analysis of the volatility of net interest income, Bank management has determined that a rate reduction of 1.00% in this interest rate environment is a reasonable approximation of a rate reduction of 2.00% in a more normal interest rate environment. The results of the economic value of equity analysis performed September 30, 2008, presented to illustrate the estimated effect of changing rates on book value of equity, are as follows:

Inland Northwest Bank, Summary Performance

September 30, 2008

(\$ in thousands)

	N	et Interest Inc	ome	Economic Value of Equity			
	Estimated	Estimated \$ Change		Estimated	\$ Change	% Change	
Projected Interest Rate Scenario	Value	from Base	from Base	Value	from Base	from Base	
+300	\$ 16,973	\$ 682	4.19%	\$ 26,479	(\$8,271)	-23.80%	
+200	16,854	563	3.46%	29,229	(5,521)	-15.89%	
+100	16,666	375	2.30%	32,032	(2,718)	-7.82%	
Base	16,291	0	0.00%	34,750	0	0.00%	
-50	15,969	(322)	-1.98%	36,099	1,349	3.88%	
-100	15,630	(661)	-4.06%	37,470	2,720	7.83%	
-150	\$ 15,292	(\$999)	-6.13%	\$ 38,892	\$ 4,142	11.92%	

24

Compared to the results of a similar analysis performed on the Bank s financial information as of December 31, 2007, presented below, the effect of a significant change in market rates of interest on net interest income as of September 30, 2008 has increased, while the effect on economic value of equity has decreased. Bank management is focused primarily on maintaining net interest income; consequently, the change in results between December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008 is not considered an improvement if rates decline. If rates increase, 2008 net interest income results show improvement over the year-end analysis. Results for both periods are well within Board established guidelines.

Net Interest Income and Market Value

Inland Northwest Bank, Summary Performance

December 31, 2007

(\$ in thousands)

	N	et Interest Inc	ome	Economic Value of Equity			
	Estimated	\$ Change	% Change	Estimated	\$ Change	% Change	
Projected Interest Rate Scenario	Value	from Base	from Base	Value	from Base	from Base	
+300	\$ 14,057	\$ 367	2.68%	\$ 23,816	(\$6,847)	-22.33%	
+200	13,945	255	1.86%	26,065	(4,598)	-15.00%	
+100	13,825	135	0.99%	28,319	(2,344)	-7.64%	
Base	13,690	0	0.00%	30,663	0	0.00%	
-100	13,558	(132)	-0.96%	33,148	2,485	8.10%	
-200	13,307	(383)	-2.80%	35,772	5,109	16.66%	
-300	\$ 12,876	(\$814)	-5.95%	\$ 38,551	\$ 7,888	25.72%	

Loan Loss Provision and Allowance

Below is a summary of changes in the Bank s allowance for loan losses for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007:

	Three months ended 9/30/2008 9/30/2007 (Dollars in Thousands)		Nine months 9/30/2008 (Dollars in 7	9/30/2007
Average net loans for the quarter/YTD	\$ 326,189	\$ 239,096	\$ 303,865	\$ 227,589
Balance, beginning of period	3,225	2,693	2,711	2,586
Add reserve for probable losses on unused loan commitments and off-balance				
sheet items (OBS) *	96	236	267	199
Balance, beginning of period, including OBS reserve	3,321	2,929	2,978	2,785
Loan charge-offs:	- ,-	,	,	,
Commercial	36	30	36	30
Real Estate	300		331	
Installment & Credit Card	21	15	39	60
Total Charge-offs	357	45	406	90
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off:				
Commercial		2		2
Real Estate	3	4	17	13
Installment & Credit Card	2	2	5	2
Total Recoveries	5	8	22	17
	_	-		
Net Charge-offs	352	37	384	73
Provision charged to expense	625	90	1,000	270
Trottsfort charges to expense	023	70	1,000	270

Balance, end of year, prior to adjustment for off-balance sheet items	3,594	2,982	3,594	2,982
Reclassification of reserve for probable losses on unused loan commitments and off-balance sheet items to Other liabilities *	(106)	(269)	(106)	(269)
Balance, end of year	\$ 3,488	\$ 2,713	\$ 3,488	\$ 2,713
Ratio of (annualized) net charge-offs during period to average net loans outstanding	0.43%	0.06%	0.17%	0.04%

Table of Contents

The Bank recorded a provision for loan losses during the nine months ending September 30, 2008 of \$1 million, which compares to \$270 thousand recorded in the same period last year. The level of the provision in 2008 is reflective of growth in the loan portfolio and, increasingly, the identification of loans that are unlikely to be collected in full due to deterioration of the borrower's financial condition and, to a lesser extent, a decline of the net realizable value of collateral securing certain loans. Bank management had originally planned to record a provision of \$150 thousand to be added to the reserve each quarter in 2008. Because the loan portfolio grew at a significantly higher rate in the second quarter than was budgeted, Bank management increased the provision to \$225 thousand for that quarter. The Bank had planned to expense \$300 thousand in the third-quarter 2008; however, an increase in classified loans and nonperforming assets prompted management to increase that amount to \$625 thousand. We expect that, even if net loan losses are nominal, the provision will continue at a relatively high level throughout the remainder of 2008 and most, if not all, of 2009. This higher level of expense is the result of: 1) the need to offset actual losses with additional provisions to the reserve in order to avoid depletion of the allowance as a percentage of loans outstanding and 2) the likelihood that, as long as the current economic climate persists, additional borrowers will be identified who are experiencing financial stress.

The Bank's net loan charge-offs in the third quarter were \$352 thousand, which compares to net loan charge-offs of only \$32 thousand during the first six months of the year. Included in third-quarter charge-offs were realized losses of \$164 thousand and a \$188 thousand write down of a nonperforming loan; that credit is discussed below. Nine month net loan charge-offs for the period ended September 30, 2008 were \$384 thousand, compared to net loan charge-offs of \$73 thousand reported for the same period in 2007. Annualized net loan charge-offs to average outstanding loans are 0.17% for the first nine months of 2008, compared to 0.04% percent for the first nine months of 2007; annualized net loan charge-offs during the just completed quarter are, of course, considerably higher, at 0.43%. Net loan charge-off experience over the past five years is detailed in the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 and has averaged approximately 0.12% per year.

The allowance for loan losses at September 30, 2008 was 1.04% of period-end (gross) loans compared to 1.08% at September 30, 2007. The reduction in the reserve from year-to-year is the result of significant growth in the loan portfolio and higher losses taken this year compared to last year, partially offset by a significantly higher provision to the reserve. Although it is management s best estimate that the balance in the reserve is adequate to cover potential losses inherent within the loan portfolio, in order to maintain the balance in the reserve, management has increased the quarterly provision and has decided to slow loan growth over the remainder of the year. Management intends to slow the growth in net loans by reducing loan participations purchased and by increasing loan participations sold. At September 30, 2008, the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans was 44% or .44 times the level of nonperforming loans; that compares to 323%, or 3.23 times the level of nonperforming loans, at September 30, 2007. The deterioration in this ratio is the result of the

26

placement of several large loans on non-accrual status. Non-accrual loans increased from less than \$1 million in September 2007 to almost \$8 million in the recently concluded quarter. Non-performing assets are discussed in detail, below, as is the estimated loss exposure on non-performing assets. The increase in estimated loss exposure is not as significant as is the increase in the gross dollar amount of these loans. The following table details the allocation of balances in the reserve for loan and lease losses, by category (dollars in thousands):

Allocation of balances in the ALLL, by category	Septemb	% of allowance to total allowance	Septemb	er 30, 2007 % of allowance to total allowance
Construction and land development (pass)	\$ 543	15.57%	\$ 562	20.72%
Secured by farmland (pass)	10	0.29%	5	0.18%
Home equity loans (pass)	75	2.15%	61	2.25%
Revolving loans secured by 1-4 family residential (pass)	9	0.26%	24	0.88%
Secured by multi-family residential (pass)	72	2.06%	76	2.80%
Secured by non-farm, non-residential real estate (pass)	1,107	31.74%	686	25.29%
Commercial and industrial loans (pass)	472	13.53%	400	14.74%
Loans to individuals (pass)	148	4.24%	115	4.24%
Credit card loans	64	1.83%	85	3.13%
All other loans and leases (pass)	3	0.09%	2	0.07%
Mortgage loans held for sale		0.00%	1	0.04%
Specifically Identified Potential Loss (1)	984	28.21%	476	17.55%
Supplementary Allowance/Non-specific Factors	1	0.03%	220	8.11%
	\$ 3,488	100.00%	\$ 2,713	100.00%

The following table shows a summary of nonaccrual loans, loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest, and other real estate owned for the periods covered in this report:

September 30	
2008	2007
Dollars in '	Thousands)
7,948	\$ 841
5	
299	
8,252	\$ 841
389,731	\$ 319,719
3,488	\$ 2,713
0.44	3.23
	2008 Dollars in 7,948 5 299 8,252 389,731 3,488

Classified and criticized loans are individually analyzed, at least quarterly, to determine loss potential. Allocated reserves related to classified and criticized loans, which includes impaired loans, are reported as Specifically Identified Potential Loss. While there may be a specific reserve for a loan, that does not necessarily mean that a loss on the loan is likely. When a loss on a loan is identified as likely, the loan is immediately written-down to a level that collateral liquidation or other repayment sources are expected to support.

Table of Contents

Non-accrual Loans

At September 30, 2008, nonperforming assets as a percentage of total assets were 2.13%. That compares to total nonperforming assets to total assets of 0.26% at September 30, 2007. Non-accrual loans, a component of nonperforming assets, consist of the following:

One borrowing relationship consists of eight loans to a builder of residential properties in the Bank's market area. The combined current balance on the loans is about \$3.4 million. Collateral securing the loans consists of 37 single-family building lots on one loan, 10 single-family building lots on another loan and 6 completed single-family residences securing the other 6 loans. The combined collateral value securing these loans exceeds \$4 million. The Bank holds a first lien position on these properties and the principal in the relationship has personally guaranteed all loans and is cooperating with the Bank in the liquidation of the collateral. Currently, the Bank believes that net proceeds, after deducting expenses and sales costs, from the sale of all of the collateral will be about \$3.6 million. When first classified as non-performing there were nine loans to this borrower; one single-family residence was sold during the third quarter and another home was sold subsequent to quarter-end, in October. The Bank has designated \$170 thousand in the allowance for loan losses as a result of this relationship.

Another loan, in the amount of \$1.5 million was originated by another financial institution, which retained a two-thirds ownership of the loan, selling a participation interest in the remaining one-third to the Bank. Collateral for this loan is located in a golf course community and consists of first lien positions on two completed townhouses, two lots zoned for townhouse development and improved with foundations and eight additional lots zoned for townhouse development. Another residential lot securing the loan is located outside of the golf course community. During August 2008, the property collateralizing the loan was re-appraised and the real estate collateral, was valued as is, at \$5.5 million. Discounting the appraised value for holding and selling costs, the originating bank concluded that the net liquidation value of the collateral would support a total loan of \$4.5 million; because the loan balance was in excess of the net liquidation value, both the originating bank and the Bank determined that it was appropriate to reduce the book value of the loans on their books to an amount supported by that liquidation value. Accordingly, the Bank charged \$188 thousand to the loan loss reserve as a valuation adjustment. The current balance on the loan is \$4.5 million, of which \$3.0 million is held by the originating bank and \$1.5 million is held by the Bank. Assuming the borrower does not cure the default, and under the current timeline, the originating bank is expected to take possession of the collateral through a foreclosure action early in the fourth-quarter. The Bank does not expect to take any material additional loss upon disposition of the assets; however, the Bank has designated \$50 thousand in the allowance for loan losses for this relationship.

Another borrowing relationship consists of three loans to a medical practice with a combined current balance of just over \$1.9 million. This medical practice generates a level of cash flow that should be sufficient to service all outstanding debt and the borrower has made certain administrative adjustments that should enable it to bring its obligations current within 12 months. Commercial real estate pledged as

28

Table of Contents

collateral to secure these loans is valued at \$2.1 million; the Bank holds a first lien position on the properties pledged as collateral. Non-real estate collateral is valued at \$200 thousand. The loans are guaranteed by the principals of the medical practice. The Bank believes that there is a low probability of loss on these loans. Nevertheless, the Bank has allocated \$50 thousand in the allowance for loan losses as a result of this relationship.

A loan to a manufacturer based in western Washington, with a balance of approximately \$1.6 million is secured by special purpose equipment that was purchased in January 2007 for \$3.6 million. The current liquidation value of the equipment is difficult to ascertain. The Bank is in first position on the pledged collateral, and the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) is in second position. The Bank considers it unlikely, but not impossible, that the SBA would pay-off the Bank s indebtedness in order to take over the first lien position. Additionally, it is the Bank s understanding that this company has a reasonable backlog of work and several investors who are considering additional equity investment into the firm. In addition, there is a larger financial institution with a significantly larger loan collateralized by the facility that houses the company and it is possible that this financial institution would consider a re-structure of all of the company s debt, including taking over the Bank s exposure. The Bank has allocated \$75 thousand in the allowance for loan losses for this credit; however, as additional financial information becomes available and the intentions of the investors and other parties becomes more clear, it may be necessary to increase that amount substantially prior to year-end.

The final significant non-accrual loan is an uncompleted single-family residence located in the Bank s market area. The Bank has a first lien position on this loan, which has a current balance of \$661 thousand. The estimated cost to complete the home is about \$200 thousand. The original appraisal valued the completed home at \$900 thousand. When the loan was originated, a lien was taken on the borrower s primary residence as an abundance of caution; this lien is second to the borrower s primary mortgage and its value to the Bank, if any, is currently unknown. The Bank has initiated foreclosure proceedings and will re-appraise the primary collateral when it gains possession of the property. Additionally, the Bank plans to determine whether there is any value to the second lien on the borrower s residence. The Bank has allocated \$177 thousand in the allowance for loan losses for this credit; however, as additional financial information becomes available it may be necessary to increase that amount.

Five other smaller loans with an aggregate value of \$380 thousand have been identified as non-accrual loans. These loans have been partially written down, as appropriate, to bring the book value of the loans on the Bank s financial statements down to the estimated realizable value. Because of uncertainly inherent in the valuation process, the Bank has designated \$40 thousand in the allowance for loan losses for these relationships.

Foreclosed Assets

The Bank currently holds one foreclosed asset consisting of a single-family residence valued at \$299 thousand upon which construction is nearly complete. The Bank has contracted for the installation of a retaining wall that will add \$30 thousand to the book value of this asset. The property should be ready to market early in the fourth quarter and it is estimated that net proceeds from a sale should be approximately \$345 thousand; this amount is expected to be adequate to avoid additional loss on the foreclosed asset.

Potential Problem Loans

Bank management has identified several credit relationships where the borrowers face financial difficulties that may result in the placement of the associated loans on a non-accrual status and/or, over time, may cause the Bank to liquidate the collateral to ensure repayment of the loan.

29

Table of Contents

The most significant potential problem relationship consists of two loans on substantially completed pre-sold homes, located in a golf community. An 80% participation in these loans was sold to another community financial institution; consequently, the balance carried on the Bank s books is about \$355 thousand. These loans are secured by first lien positions. The balance on these loans is \$1.8 million and the value of the collateral is estimated at \$2.2 million, based on sales price. Based on its 20% share in the loans, the Bank has allocated \$40 thousand in the allowance for loan losses as a result of this relationship.

The aggregate value of certain other smaller loans that have been identified as potential problem loans is \$1.2 million. The Bank has allocated \$176 thousand in the allowance for loan losses as a result of these relationships.

Non-interest Income

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, non-interest income was \$1.86 million, an increase of \$190 thousand, or 11%, from the same period in 2007. Comparing 2008 to 2007, the change to non-interest income came primarily from increased net charges on non-sufficient funds checks that consisted of overdrafts and returned items presented against customer checking accounts, and increased interchange income earned from ATM and debit card fees. These increases contributed \$223 thousand and \$54 thousand, respectively, to the Bank s non-interest income.

Several investment securities that had been bought at a discount were called in the second-quarter and the remaining \$18 thousand in discounts that had not yet been taken was recorded as part of non-interest income when the securities were called. Income from account service charges and sundry recoveries increased about \$13 thousand and \$12 thousand, respectively, year-over-year. Non-interest income from the origination and sale of residential mortgages was \$347 thousand for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, down \$132 thousand from the same period as in the prior year due to a slower real estate market.

Non-interest income throughout the remainder of the year is expected to remain consistent with 2008 results to date.

Non-interest Expense

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, non-interest expense was \$8.83 million, an increase of \$1.16 million, or 15%, over the same period in 2007. Year-over-year, the largest increase in non-interest expense was recorded in salaries and employee benefits, which were \$642 thousand higher for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to the same period in 2007. Salaries and benefits paid to employees of new branches opened in late 2007 contributed \$254 thousand of the increase in this expense category. As a result of significant new loan production that occurred during the last-half of 2007 and the first-half of 2008, the Bank paid an additional \$131 thousand in incentive commission to lending officers. Salary increases for existing employees during the period ended September 30, 2008 were generally in the 4%-5% range. Occupancy, premises and equipment expense in 2008, including depreciation expense, was \$246 thousand higher than in the same period last year; the addition of two branches to the Bank s branch network, contributed \$202 thousand of the increase. The other significant increase in non-interest expense relates to premiums paid for Federal Deposit Insurance Company (FDIC) insurance, which increased by \$139 thousand year-over-year. This increase in premium expense was due to the fact that the Bank has fully utilized any credits that it previously was able to apply to insurance premiums and because of a significant increase in the amount of insurable deposits that it is required to insure. The Bank qualifies to pay FDIC premiums at the lowest rate tier available. In connection with the increased level of non-performing assets held by the Bank, the Bank s legal expenses have increased to \$79 thousand from \$38 thousand. The remaining increase of \$92 thousand is disbursed among a variety of line items and results from growth in assets and the higher number of Bank customers.

30

Table of Contents

Non-interest expense is expected to continue to run significantly higher throughout the remainder of the year than for the same period in the prior year because of the Bank s recent additions of branches and personnel. The increase in budgeted non-interest expense is intended to position the Bank to increase revenues and net income in future years.

BALANCE SHEET

Loans

At September 30, 2008, the Bank reported \$332.4 million in net loans, including loans-held-for-sale. This is an increase of \$55.5 million and \$82.2 million, or 20% and 33%, respectively, over loans reported at December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2007.

In-house net loan production during the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was running ahead of expectations by about \$14 million as of the end of the third quarter. The Bank also purchases loan participations from other community financial institutions and those balances have increased by almost \$13 million since December 31, 2007, to a total of \$52 million. Management did not expect either an increase or decrease in loan participations purchased during 2008. The Bank had budgeted loan growth in excess of 14% for the year, which was equal to about \$40 million in loan growth. Because year-to-date loan growth has substantially exceeded budget for the entire year, Bank management has decided to slow loan growth over the remainder of the year. In order to continue to establish new customer relationships and book new loans, the Bank plans to allow participations purchased to decrease by allowing the purchased loans that mature prior to year-end to mature without being replaced by other participations. Approximately \$12 million of the loan participations purchased by the Bank are maturing prior to year-end; however, some of those loans will likely be renewed or extended. Maturing participations may be replaced with loans originated in the Bank s local market. Additionally, several banks have agreed to purchase participations in the existing loans and those sales are expected to occur during the fourth quarter.

Combined with scheduled amortization in the existing loan portfolio and pre-payments that typically occur, management believes that there will be adequate opportunity to allow the Bank s lending officers to continue to market the Bank s products aggressively, without significant growth in the loan portfolio through year-end. Management expects non-interest income should improve as a result of these actions because the Bank will be able to retain a servicing fee for loan participations sold.

Competition in the Bank s primary market area resulted in downward pressure on loan rates and lower market rates of interest prompted some borrowers to request interest rate reductions on existing fixed rate loans throughout most of the first-half of 2008. Late in the first-half competitive pressures eased, due to the general turmoil in the financial markets and because several of the Bank s competitors had to focus on their own internal problems that were aggravated by aggressive competition for loans. A number of competitors, in fact, have decided to shrink their loan portfolios, which provides an opportunity for the Bank to look at developing relationships with customers displaced from those institutions. Unfortunately, the Bank s capital position limits its ability to avail itself of that opportunity because the Bank does not have excess capital. Therefore, in order to avoid a deterioration of the Bank s capital levels, the Bank s ability to take on new business is limited to an amount that is supported by its earnings. This constraint is discussed in more detail, below, under Capital Resources of the Company.

31

Table of Contents

The Bank maintains relationships with several other community institutions, whereby it purchases participations in loans made by those institutions. This is an important part of the Bank s business, with participations purchased accounting for approximately 15.4%, 14.1% and 11.7% of total loans outstanding at September 30, 2008, December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2007, respectively. The originating institutions, typically, are interested in selling a participation in loans originated by them because of regulatory limitations on the amount that they are allowed to lend to any one borrower. The Bank is interested in buying such participations because they are better performing assets, when compared to other investment options and because the participations help diversify the Bank s investments outside of its primary market area. The Bank does not normally have contact with the borrower on participations purchased but instead relies on the originating institution to properly administer the credit; consequently, the Bank reviews the financial performance and the credit culture of each participant institution prior to the purchase of loan participations from such institutions. The Bank underwrites each loan participation purchased, utilizing substantially the same standards applied to Bank-originated loans, and makes an independent credit decision as to whether or not to become involved in a loan originated by another financial institution.

As the Bank has grown in asset size and as it has expanded its footprint in its primary market area, the opportunity to develop new customer relationships in its primary market has, likewise, expanded. Because capital constrains the amount that the Bank can grow in any given year, the Bank intends to de-emphasize this line of business and, in fact, will allow the portfolio of loan participations purchased to decrease. It is management s intent to allocate the cash that becomes available to loan production in the Bank s primary market as purchased loan participations mature or are otherwise paid off.

Credit quality and maintaining an appropriate loan structure are important priorities for the Bank. The Bank therefore avoids acquiring credits that do not meet its standards for loan quality. In addition, the Bank seeks to avoid acquiring credits that are not appropriately priced for the Bank s business model or where other conditions of the loan are not, in the Bank s opinion, consistent with sound lending practices. It is Bank management s intent to curtail loan production and Bank asset growth if it becomes apparent that such growth is dependent upon booking credits that do not meet its credit quality or loan structure standards.

For the remainder of this year, and, to the extent that the general business climate over the next few years can be forecast, Bank management believes that there is ample opportunity for quality loan growth in its market area. While the Bank expects to have ample opportunity to originate new loans in its market area, the amount of net new loans that the Bank will be able to hold on its balance sheet will be determined, at least over the near term, by capital increases resulting from net income. Currently, the Bank s existing capital is fully leveraged and current conditions in the financial markets are not favorable for capital generation. Therefore, the Bank intends to implement a program of selling loan participations and expects to concentrate on other types of loans, such as small business administration loans, that are marketable in established and liquid markets.

Securities

As of September 30, 2008, the Bank had \$18.5 million in securities classified as available-for-sale and \$7.6 million in securities classified as held-to-maturity. All of these securities are pledged as collateral to secure or support: public deposits in Washington and Idaho; the Bank s repurchase account program; balances in the Bank s Treasury, Tax and Loan deposit account with the Federal Reserve Bank of San Francisco; and as collateral for funds on deposit by U.S. Bankruptcy Trustees. With the exception of one corporate bond (General Electric) in the amount of \$500 thousand, all of the securities are obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies, and Government Sponsored Enterprises or, in the held-to-maturity portfolio, municipal governments. The Bank does not own any preferred stock in Federal National Mortgage Association (FNM, or Fannie Mae) or Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FRE, or Freddie Mac) or any equity securities, other than \$924 thousand in Federal Home Loan Bank stock required for membership and advances from the FHLB, \$190 thousand in the common

32

Table of Contents

stock of Pacific Coast Bankers Bank, \$250 thousand in the common stock of a community bank located in western Washington and \$50 thousand in common stock of a community development company located in Spokane, Washington. The Company has invested \$155 thousand in the common stock of Northwest Bancorporation Capital Trust I, discussed in Note 9.

The securities portfolio has decreased in size by \$10.4 million during 2008. The primary driver behind the decrease was a \$11.3 million decrease in balances in Securities Sold under Agreement to Repurchase, discussed below under Liquidity. The decrease in Securities Sold under Agreement to Repurchase is the result of a significant decrease in the rate that the Bank pays on these liabilities, which is tied to the yield on U.S. Treasury securities. This rate decrease prompted some customers to move their funds into deposit accounts that provide a higher yield. The reduction in balances in Securities Sold under Agreement to Repurchase accounts freed up investment securities that otherwise would have been pledged as collateral to secure these accounts. Investment securities that no longer needed to be pledged as collateral were converted to a higher yield as they matured or were called by investing the proceeds into loan production.

Deposits

At September 30, 2008, after eliminating deposits of the parent holding company, the Bank reported \$309.9 million in deposits. This is an increase of \$37.4 million and \$70.0 million, or 13.4% and 21.9%, respectively, over deposits reported at December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2007.

Deposit growth for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was especially strong for savings accounts, which are up \$19.0 million for the year, an increase of 114.5%. Most of the growth in savings is attributed to the movement of deposits from Money Market and Repurchase accounts into the Bank s high-yield savings account. Certificates of deposit grew \$10.0 million or 6.1%, with \$4.6 million in the over \$100 thousand category and \$5.4 million in the under \$100 thousand category. Money market accounts increased by \$0.6 million or 2.0% and NOW accounts declined by \$1.2 million, or 8.4%. Non-interest bearing demand deposits grew by \$8.9 million or 8.4% from year-end.

Deposit rates were slow to decline during most of the first half of 2008. By the end of the second-quarter rate competition in the local market had eased somewhat; however, with the financial market turmoil experienced in the third quarter, and despite a Federal Reserve rate cut of 0.50% on overnight money, rates on any term deposit much over three months maturity have been higher in the late third quarter than throughout most of earlier 2008. National CDs continue to command a premium, as a number of financial institutions, nationally, continue to experience liquidity issues and bid up the price of certificates offered through brokers or on national rate listing services. In order to retain existing deposits, and to attract new deposits, the Bank must remain competitive on deposit rates.

While interest rates, as measured by WSJ Prime rate, are 2.43% lower in 2008 than they were in 2007, the average rate paid by the Bank in all interest bearing deposits is only 0.11% lower, on average, through the first nine months of the year. Rates on interest bearing deposits have remained relatively high because rates being offered in the Bank s market by competing institutions have not dropped significantly from year-to-year, and because of movement by customers from lower paying deposit products to higher paying products. The cost of interest bearing funds in the first-quarter 2008 was 0.20% higher than for the same quarter in the prior year. In the second-quarter, with rate pressure easing somewhat, the average rate paid on interest bearing deposits dropped from 3.90% to 3.59%. During the third quarter the average rate paid on interest bearing deposits dropped to about 3.50%. The third-quarter drop in deposit rates brought the cost of interest bearing deposits as of September 30, 2008 to 3.66%, compared to 3.83% for the first nine months of 2007.

33

About \$32 million of the Bank s certificates of deposit are scheduled to mature in the final three months of 2008 and are expected to be replaced or renewed at lower rates of interest, assuming no significant change in market rates of interest. As an alternative to renewing these maturing CDs, the Bank could elect to replace them with borrowed funds, most likely from the FHLB; that is, the Bank could decide to allow deposits to decrease while increasing borrowed funds by a like amount without impairing its ability to fund loans or other earning assets. In either case, the Bank should benefit from the renewal or replacement of these funds; applying current FHLB rates to the remaining term of these liabilities results in a reduction in interest expense of just over \$25 thousand per month. Of course, maturing deposits will not likely be completely replaced by borrowed funds; the actual savings, if any, to the Bank will depend upon how many certificates renew or are replaced with borrowed funds, as well as the terms and conditions of the renewed certificates and/or borrowed funds.

Savings accounts grew due to depositor preference for the Bank s high yield savings account that pays up to 2.75% interest on savings accounts with balances in excess of \$100 thousand. Savings are expected to continue to grow as existing customers continue to move funds into the high yield savings account and because that account is highly competitive with savings and premium Money Market accounts offered by competitor institutions.

Interest-free checking balances were almost \$9 million higher at September 30, 2008 than was reported at year-end; however, average balances in non-interest bearing accounts are about \$3 million lower in 2008 than in 2007. NOW accounts are about \$1.2 million lower than at year-end and about \$750 thousand lower, on average, in 2008 than in 2007. New deposit growth at the two branches added in late 2007 was offset by movement of deposits into higher yielding products and/or lower balances in existing accounts.

Junior Subordinated Debentures

The Company had \$5.15 million in junior subordinated debentures at September 30, 2008. Most of the proceeds from the debentures have been funded to the Bank and have been used primarily for branch expansion and relocation. The junior subordinated debentures have an interest rate of 5.95% that is fixed through June 30, 2010. As of September 30, 2008, the entire balance of the junior subordinated debentures qualified as Tier 1 capital under regulatory capital guidelines. Additional information regarding the terms of the junior subordinated debentures, including maturity, re-pricing dates and interest rate, is included in Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in the Company s 2007 annual report on Form 10-K, as filed with the SEC on March 21, 2008.

Capital Resources of the Company

Capital is the shareholders investment in the Company. Capital grows through the retention of earnings and the sale of new stock, including the exercise of stock options, and decreases through the payment of dividends and the repurchase of outstanding shares. Stock dividends do not affect capital. Capital formation allows the Company to grow assets and provides flexibility in times of adversity.

Below is a summary of changes in the Company s capital accounts from December 31, 2007 through September 30, 2008 (dollars in thousands):

Beginning capital December 31, 2007	\$ 27,346
Additions relating to equity-based compensation	77
Additions due to shares issued under the Director Stock Compensation Plan	69
Net income for period ended September 30, 2008	1,141
Change in accumulated other comprehensive income	(46)
Cash dividends paid to shareholders	(474)
Ending capital September 30, 2008	\$ 28,113

34

Table of Contents

Banking regulations require the Bank to maintain minimum levels of capital. The Bank manages its capital to maintain a well capitalized designation, which is the FDIC s highest rating. A well-capitalized rating from the FDIC requires that the Bank maintain risk-based capital levels of 10% of total risk-based assets. At September 30, 2008, the Bank s total capital to risk weighted assets was 10.88%, compared to 11.41% at December 31, 2007 and 12.19% at September 30, 2007.

The reduction in the total capital to risk weighted asset ratio from period to period is the result of a significant increase in loans and, to a lesser effect, a decrease in the Bank s investment portfolio. The total capital to risk weighted asset ratio is calculated by dividing total capital by assets that have been risk weighted according to regulatory guidelines. In September 2007, the Bank s total capital (basically, common stock, retained earnings and the ALLL) was about \$32.7 million and risk-weighted assets were just over \$268 million. Over the past year, total Bank capital, including the increase to additional paid-in capital discussed elsewhere in this report, increased to about \$38.2 million, based on retained earnings, but risk-weighted assets increased to \$351 million (primarily due to an increase in loans of \$82 million). A 30% increase in assets was supported by a 16% increase in capital, which accounts for the reduced capital ratio.

To provide an appropriate margin over the 10% requirement to be considered well capitalized, the Company obtained a loan of \$3 million in late August 2008; loan proceeds were invested into the Bank as additional paid-in capital. In September 2008, the Company transferred land that it owned in Airway Heights, Washington to the Bank. The land that was transferred is currently being improved as a branch site; an existing branch in Airway Heights will be relocated to this new facility in December 2008. The value of the land transferred to the Bank was \$405 thousand and is accounted for at the Bank level as additional paid-in capital. These contributions to Bank capital increased the Bank s total capital to risk weighted assets to 10.88%, which Bank management believes to be adequate to support the existing level and quality of the Bank s assets.

Holding company debt can be structured to qualify as holding company capital for the purpose of computing regulatory capital ratios; however, in the case of the loan that the Company negotiated in August, the loan structure does not qualify as regulatory capital and does not improve the Company s capital ratios. In fact, this new holding company debt results in a small reduction to the Company s total capital to risk weighted asset ratio because Company assets increased, without a concurrent increase in Company capital. The Company s total capital to risk weighted asset ratio decreased from 10.73% on June 30, 2008 to 10.39% on September 30, 2008. Because the Company also needs to maintain a total capital to risk weighted asset ratio in excess of 10%, Company management intends to focus on additional options to enhance the Company s capital position.

Other options available to the Company include shareholder rights offerings, private placements or a public offering. Recognizing that the current economic environment makes capital production through those sources extremely expensive and difficult to obtain, another option available to maintain the total capital to risk weighted asset ratio at an acceptable level is to restrain asset growth to a level that earnings will support. Bank management has determined that the Bank s assets can grow at about 10 times earnings without negatively affecting the total capital to risk weighted asset ratio; that is, the Company can grow about \$10 million for every \$1 million that it earns. As previously discussed, the Bank expects that opportunities for loan production will likely

35

Table of Contents

outpace the ability of the Bank and the Company to increase capital from traditional sources. Bank management anticipates that growth may be constrained by the level of net income, therefore the Bank intends to concentrate on the sale of whole loans and/or loan participations, which should enhance non-interest income and allow for additional loan production.

As an alternate source of capital, the Company is assessing the desirability of participating in the Capital Purchase Program recently announced by the U.S. Treasury. Under that program, the Bank would likely qualify to sell between \$3.5 million and \$10.5 million in preferred stock to the Treasury. Information currently available to the Company suggests that capital raised through the Capital Purchase Program would be relatively inexpensive; the Treasury is investment would be compensated by a 5% cash dividend, which is cumulative and payable quarterly. Applications for participation in the program must be submitted by November 14, 2008. Management and the Board of Directors of the Company are considering the favorable features of the program, the costs and potentially negative features of the program and those attributes and consequences of the program that have yet to be fully detailed by the Treasury. The most obvious positive consequences of participating in the program are that it should allow for growth in lending by the Bank and that it significantly enhances Bank and Company capital, which is desirable if the currently volatile financial environment persists for some period of time. On the other hand, Company shareholders would experience a small dilution in ownership if the Treasury exercises the warrants to purchase Company common stock that it will be granted if the Company participates in the program, and the dividend rate on the preferred stock steps up to 9% if the preferred stock is not redeemed within five years. There are a number of other features and issues that management is investigating prior to deciding whether to participate in the program. If the Company participates in the program, the Treasury has indicated that it intends to fund the purchase of the preferred stock no later than December 31, 2008.

Historically, the Company s Board of Directors has scheduled its dividend considerations so that annual cash dividends, when and if declared by the Company, would be paid in mid-June of each year. The Company paid its first cash dividend in 2003, in the amount of \$0.10 per share. In each of the subsequent years, the Board of Directors has increased the amount of cash dividend paid per share by \$0.02. The annual cash dividend per share declared in 2008 was \$0.20; the increase in the 2008 cash dividend over the cash dividend paid in 2007 is 11%. The cash dividend was paid on June 13, 2008 to shareholders of record as of May 9, 2008 and represented a payout of 17.9% of the Company s prior-year net income. A number of financial institutions have announced reductions in the payment of cash dividends over the past several months or, in some cases, the total elimination of cash dividends. Because the Company currently only pays a cash dividend annually, the Board of Directors has not considered whether the Company should take similar action with respect to a cash dividend in 2009. A discussion about whether and to what extent a cash dividend in 2009 would be appropriate will likely take place after the end of the first-quarter 2009 and by that time it is anticipated that national and/or local economic conditions will have changed significantly and/or considerably better information as to the state of the economy will be available.

Accelerated asset growth over the past year has resulted in Bank capital being fully leveraged as of September 30, 2008. Unless the Company decides to participate in the Treasury s Capital Purchase Program, or until such time as capital market conditions improve, which would allow the Company to consider obtaining additional capital beyond what is provided by retained earnings, the Bank s continued growth will be limited to that level of growth that can be achieved without causing deterioration in its capital ratios, particularly the total capital to risk weighted asset ratio.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS AND COMMITMENTS

In the normal course of business, the Bank commits to extensions of credit and issues letters of credit. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making commitments to lend funds and conditional obligations as it does for other credit products. In the event of nonperformance by the customer, the Bank s exposure to credit

36

Table of Contents

loss is represented by the contractual amount of the instruments. Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition established by the contract. Since some commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. At September 30, 2008, the Bank had \$108 million in commitments to extend credit. The distribution of loan commitments, both as to type and quality, generally mirrors the distribution of outstanding loans detailed in Note 5 and elsewhere in this Report.

Letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk involved is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. At September 30, 2008, the Bank had issued \$2.9 million in letters of credit. The approximately \$2 million increase in letters of credit from year-end was due to the issuance of a letter of credit in that amount for one customer. The letter of credit is fully secured by funds on deposit at the Bank.

The Bank also has internal guidance lines of credit established for certain borrowers, primarily in the residential construction industry. These guidance lines are not contractual commitments to extend credit, and may be terminated by the Bank for any reason without any obligation to the borrower. These lines provide the Bank s lending officers limits on future extensions of credit to certain borrowers. The Bank uses the same credit policies in establishing internal guidance lines as it does for other credit products. As the Bank has seldom, if ever, had to cancel a guidance line, the amount of the lines in place at September 30, 2008 are included in the amount disclosed under commitments to lend, listed above.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity is the term used to define the Bank s ability to meet its financial commitments. The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to ensure that funds are available for both lending needs and the withdrawal of deposit funds. The Bank derives liquidity primarily through deposit growth, including core deposits, the maturity of investment securities, and loan payments received. Traditionally, core deposits are considered non-volatile and include demand, interest checking, money market, savings and some time deposits with balances under FDIC insured limits. Certain sources of funding, in excess of FDIC insured limits, are analyzed to determine volatility over periods of time of one year or more. A portion of those funds may be considered non-volatile, based on the analysis, and will have many of the characteristics generally associated with core deposits. Additional liquidity is provided through sales of loans, sales of securities, and access to alternative funding sources. National time deposits, including brokered deposits, public deposits, and deposits available through various national listing programs are traditionally considered to be more volatile than core deposits; however, more recently, the volatility has had more to do with pricing than with availability. Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings, and unsecured overnight fed funds borrowings are referred to as alternative funding sources.

The Company, apart from the Bank, does not currently have material funding needs except for debt service on the junior subordinated debentures detailed in Note 9 and on the holding company loan detailed in Note 10. Funding for the Company s debt service and other Company expenses comes from dividends declared by the Bank. Interest expense on the junior subordinated debentures is about \$26 thousand per month and principal and interest payments on the holding company loan are about \$36 thousand per month. The Bank has use of the funds that were generated through Company debt; consequently, the dividends that the Bank pays to the Company to service this debt are, effectively, in lieu of interest that it would, otherwise, be paying on deposits. About \$8 thousand per month of the Bank s employee expenses are allocated to the Company; however, this amount is, effectively, eliminated when consolidating the Bank s financial statements with the Company s. The Company has other expenses of about \$9 thousand per month, consisting primarily of legal and accounting expenses and shareholder communication costs, that are also funded by Bank dividends.

37

The Bank historically has relied upon the generation of local deposits to fund its investment in loans, securities and other assets. From time-to-time, the Bank lists its certificate of deposit rates on a national listing service and will generate funds through that source. The funds almost always come from credit unions and currently represent about 7% of total deposits. Public funds contribute not quite 2% to deposits and consist of funds deposited by the States of Washington and Idaho. Public funds are stable, remaining with the Bank for as long as the Bank is willing to pay the required rate of interest on such funds. The state of Washington sets the rates for its deposits, while the state of Idaho utilizes an auction process to price their funds. The rate paid on State funds is typically somewhat higher than the rate earned on Federal Funds Sold; consequently, the retention of State funds make sense when there is adequate demand to allow for the investment of those funds into loans with similar re-pricing intervals. Brokered deposits, discussed below, fund about 10% of the Bank s assets as of quarter-end. In previous quarterly reports, public funds comprised approximately 4% of deposits and brokered deposits comprised approximately 8% of deposits. The difference at September 30, 2008 results from the Bank's decision to not renew about \$6 million in Washington State deposits during the third quarter. Holding deposits of the State of Washington exposes the Bank to the risk of loss should another Washington State depository institution fail, assuming that failure results in a loss to the State. In the event that a bank failure results in a loss to the State of Washington, the remaining depositories holding State funds will be assessed a certain amount to help cover that loss; the exposure can be as much as 10% of the State deposits held by an approved depository institution. Prior to its decision to not renew the deposits referenced above, the Bank held approximately \$9.5 million in State funds, and was, therefore, exposed to an assessment that could have been as high as \$950 thousand. Remaining State of Washington deposits, most of which mature in February 2009, expose the Bank to a maximum assessment of about \$350 thousand. Bank management will decide whether to renew the remaining State deposits as they come due. To cover the return of \$6 million of State of Washington funds, the Bank temporarily increased brokered funds on its balance sheet by a similar amount. Bank management anticipates that enhanced deposit production at several new and relocated branches will be adequate to reduce the brokered funds within a few months. The remaining 81% of deposits are owned by local individuals and businesses. The Bank s analysis of average certificates of deposit balances reported over the twelve months ending September 30, 2008 concludes that the \$72 million in CDs over \$100 thousand is split between reliable funds and volatile funds at a 68%/32% ratio.

The Bank offers a repurchase program to certain customers whose deposit balances exceed the FDIC insurance threshold. Repurchase accounts are, by their nature, considered to be volatile, however, the Bank s analysis of the true reliability of these funds concludes that the average balance in repurchase accounts for the twelve month period ending September 30, 2008, about \$18 million, is split between reliable funds and volatile funds at better than a 3 to 1 ratio. If properly managed, and assuming that the Bank does not carry significant amounts of un-pledged securities, the repurchase program does not significantly affect Bank liquidity, because a reduction in balances in repurchase accounts will reduce funds available to the Bank, but will free up previously pledged securities that can generate funds through their sale or pledge to allow additional borrowings. Increases in repurchase account balances do not provide the Bank with additional liquidity, unless it has excess un-pledged securities in its portfolio, because the Bank needs to use the additional repurchase account funds to purchase securities to collateralize the accounts, which are collateralized at a minimum of 105% of repurchase account balances. Although the repurchase program does not significantly affect bank liquidity, the program is always expected to have at least a nominal negative effect on liquidity, due to the 105% collateral requirement. Another negative associated with the repurchase program results from the need to maintain enough securities to continually cover the highest balance that might be held in these accounts at any time, even though actual balances vary throughout each month and throughout the year. Because of the negative effect of repurchase account balances on liquidity and the constraints that they place on balance sheet structure, the Bank is encouraging customers to move repurchase account balances to other types of deposit accounts unless the customer s primary concern is collateral coverage of their balances. Those customers who are primarily concerned with collateral coverage are being encouraged to use the CDARS, or Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service, as discussed below, which is another option that provides for full security for their funds.

38

It is the Bank s general philosophy to fund its growth by gathering local deposits. To that end, the Bank has invested in a sizable branch network for a Bank of its asset size. The Bank invested in two new branches in 2007, a 20% increase in its branch network, with the primary goal of generating additional deposits. In June 2008, the Bank relocated its Indian Trail branch from a grocery store location into a new stand-alone facility. The Bank plans to relocate one additional branch by year-end 2008. Both relocations are intended to enhance the Bank s market share and gather additional deposits. The Bank historically has been successful in funding its asset growth with local deposits. Funds borrowed from other financial institutions, including the FHLB, support a little over 4% of the balance sheet (almost 7% when you include Federal Funds Purchased) and other non-local funds support 14%. Because of accelerated loan production, the Bank had to increase its reliance on borrowed funds and non-local deposits, including brokered deposits over the past year. As in-market deposit production at the two new Idaho branches that opened in late 2007, and the two Washington branches that were relocated in 2008, becomes meaningful, the Bank should be able to allow borrowed funds and non-local deposits to fund a smaller percentage of the balance sheet.

Brokered funds have become an important source of liquidity to community banks over the past few years and, if properly structured, should represent a reliable and predictable source of funding. The Bank has entered into agreements with two providers of brokered funds; one provider is a Bankers Bank, in which the Bank is a shareholder, the other provider has been utilized by the Bank for securities sales and purchases for a number of years. When the Bank is in need of funds for investment into loans or other assets, it informs the provider of the amount and the terms of CDs it is willing to issue. The provider, through a network of investment brokers, will use its best efforts to market Bank issued CDs to individuals and businesses, typically in amounts under the FDIC insurance limit. Upon completion of the offering the Bank issues one CD for the full amount of the offering and then the CD is forwarded to CEDE & Company, as custodian for the beneficial owners. The firm that the Bank utilizes for the offering, as well as the investment brokers who sell the CDs to their clients, are compensated through a placement fee that adds about 0.25% to the cost of the CDs; therefore, the all-in cost of the CD to the Bank equals the quoted rate on the CD plus about 0.25%. Currently, the all-in cost of brokered CDs is higher than the cost of borrowing funds from the FHLB or issuing CD specials in the Bank s market area. While the Bank had not previously relied on brokered CDs to fund its assets, significant loan growth in the last-half of 2007 was funded, to a significant degree, by brokered deposits. As discussed above, the Bank has also increased brokered deposits to replace \$6 million in public funds; this increase in brokered funds is expected to be temporary. At the end of the third-quarter 2008, brokered CDs totaled almost \$32 million, which is just over 10% of total deposits. The Bank limits its brokered CD production to CDs that are not redeemable prior to maturity, except in the case of the death or declaration of incompetence of the beneficial owner; by so doing, the CDs become a reliable and predictable source of funding. To further enhance the reliability of brokered deposits, the Bank does not typically issue brokered deposits in maturities of less than one year; in fact, the Bank prefers a maturity of two years or more on brokered CDs and will stagger brokered CD production so that only a small portion of CDs will be maturing at any given time. The Bank s Board of Directors has approved the use of brokered CDs in an amount not to exceed 30% of total deposits.

The Bank is a member of the Promontory Network and, as such, can arrange for the placement of large amounts of deposits with other financial institutions that are also members of this network. Large deposits are divided into smaller amounts and placed with other network member institutions so that no deposit at any one institution will exceed the FDIC insured limit. With over 2,000 member institutions eligible to accept deposits through this program, the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (or CDARS), the Bank can place deposits of up to \$50 million, with the full amount eligible for FDIC insurance coverage. Using the CDARS reciprocal program, the Bank receives deposits from other institutions in an amount equal to the deposits that it places into the program. As an example, a company or an individual can have the Bank place \$10 million into the program; those funds will be sent to over 100 other financial institutions in amounts of less than \$100 thousand, with the full \$10 million eligible for FDIC coverage. The Bank, in turn, will receive back \$10 million from more

39

than 100 customers of other financial institutions. Given the current volatility of the financial markets, the Bank anticipates promoting this program to current and prospective customers who are primarily interested in the security of their funds. Pricing on funds generated through the CDARS program is expected to be competitive with, and perhaps even somewhat less, than pricing on the Bank s in-house certificates of deposits. At year-end the Bank reported about \$3.5 million in CDARS deposits; that amount increased to \$5.5 million by September 30, 2008 and, based on current orders, is expected to increase by another \$2.5 million in October 2008. Bank management anticipates that these accounts will be an increasingly dependable and important source of funding for the foreseeable future.

The Bank s Board of Directors has set liquidity limits, and performance to those limits is monitored monthly. An analysis of Bank liquidity performed on September 30, 2008 balances concluded that the Bank had access to funds equal to about 28% of its quarter-end total assets. This liquidity ratio includes additional funds that the Bank could borrow from the FHLB if it purchased additional FHLB stock. The Bank owns a little over \$924 thousand in FHLB stock. To access additional loans from the FHLB, the Bank would have to buy FHLB stock in an amount that is approximately equal to 4.5% of the new funds borrowed. Bank management does not anticipate purchasing additional FHLB stock in excess of \$200 thousand without additional discussion with the Bank s Board of Directors.

The Bank has a borrowing limit with the FHLB equal to 15% of total assets. At September 30, 2008, the borrowing line was approximately \$58 million. However, two factors limit the availability of the FHLB line: (1) the value of collateral pledged; and, as previously noted (2) the amount of FHLB stock owned. At September 30, 2008, the Bank had pledged collateral that supported about \$53 million in borrowings. Deducting amounts already borrowed from the FHLB, additional borrowings at September 30, 2008 were limited to just over \$32 million, assuming additional stock equal in amount to 4.5% of the newly borrowed funds is purchased. At September 30, 2008, the Bank had established unsecured overnight lines totaling \$26.5 million with various correspondent banks, with \$4.9 million advanced on these lines as of that date.

The Bank must maintain an adequate level of liquidity to ensure the availability of sufficient funds to accommodate deposit withdrawals, to support loan growth, to satisfy financial commitments and to take advantage of investment opportunities. In addition to consolidated net income of \$1.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Bank relied on an increase in borrowed funds of \$10.7 million and Federal Funds Purchased of \$8.9 million, increased deposits of \$37.4 million, offset by a decrease in repurchase accounts of \$11.4 million, and a decrease in securities owned of \$10.3 million to cover net loan growth (including loans held for sale) of \$56.3 million and investment in fixed assets of \$5.7 million. Cash and due from banks can vary significantly from day-to-day, but was down \$1.8 million at September 30, 2008 when compared to the year ended December 31, 2007. A decrease in Federal Funds Sold of \$3.1 million added to funds available for investment into loans. \$0.7 million in provision to the allowance for loan losses in excess of actual net loan losses and \$0.6 million in depreciation expense are not actual uses of cash. Other sources and uses of funds were not material or are considered to be temporary.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Not required for the Company because the Company qualifies as a smaller reporting company, as that term is defined by the SEC.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

40

Table of Contents

The Company s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have reviewed and evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 240.13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of September 30, 2008, the date of this quarterly report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company s current disclosure controls and procedures are effective and timely, providing them with material information relating to the Company required to be disclosed in the reports that are filed or submitted under the Exchange Act.

Changes in Internal Controls

There have been no changes in internal controls or procedures during the last quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect the Company s control over financial reporting.

Item 4T. Controls and Procedures

Information regarding internal control over financial reporting has been set forth in Item 4. This quarterly report does not include an attestation report of the Company s registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting. Management s report was not subject to attestation by the Company s registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management s report in this quarterly report.

PART II OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

There are no material pending legal proceedings to which the Company is a party, or to which any of its property is subject, other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business of banking. No material loss is expected from any of such pending claims or lawsuits.

41

Item 1a. Risk Factors

Not required for the Company because the Company qualifies as a smaller reporting company, as that term is defined by the SEC.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

No shares were issued during the quarter ending September 30, 2008.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not Applicable.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

Item 5. Other Information

Not Applicable.

Item 6. Exhibits

Exhibit 3.1.1	Articles of Incorporation of the Company. Filed as Exhibit 3.1.1 to the Company s registration statement on Form 10-SB, filed with the SEC on April 30, 1998 and incorporated by reference herein.
Exhibit 3.1.2	Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Company. Filed as Exhibit 3.1.2 to the Company s registration statement on Form 10-SB, filed with the SEC on April 30, 1998 and incorporated by reference herein.
Exhibit 3.1.3	Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the Company. Filed as Exhibit 3.1.3 to the Company s registration statement on Form 10-SB, filed with the SEC on April 30, 1998 and incorporated by reference herein.
Exhibit 3.2	Bylaws of the Company. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company s registration statement on Form 10-SB, filed with the SEC on April 30, 1998 and incorporated by reference herein.
Exhibit 4.1	Reference is made to exhibits 3.1.1, 3.1.2, 3.1.3, and 3.2.
Exhibit 31.1	Certification of Randall L. Fewel, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Exhibit 31.2	Certification of Christopher C. Jurey, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Exhibit 32.1	Certification of Randall L. Fewel, President and Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350
Exhibit 32.2	Certification of Christopher C. Jurey, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350

42

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

NORTHWEST BANCORPORATION, INC.

(Registrant)

Dated: November 10, 2008 /s/ Randall L. Fewel

Randall L. Fewel

President & Chief Executive Officer

Dated: November 10, 2008 /s/ Christopher C. Jurey

Christopher C. Jurey Chief Financial Officer

43